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RECEIVED 

OCT 11 2018 

PU BLI C SERViC E 
COMM ISSION 

Enclosed please find the Joint Application of Joann Estates Utilities, Inc. ("Joann Estates") and 
Paducah-McCracken County Joint Sewer Agency ("JSA") to approver transfer of two wastewater 
collection systems from Joann Estates to JSA in McCracken County, Kentucky. 

I. Jo in t Application 
2. Exhibit A - Transfer Agreement 
3. Exhibit B - Joann Estates Articles of Incorporation 
4. Exhibit C - Joann Estates Transfer Agreement Authorization 
5. Exhibit D - Written Communication Between Joann Estates and the Kentucky Division of 

Water 
6. Exhibit E - Reso lution and Minutes of JSA Transfer Agreement Authori zation 
7. Exhibit F- JSA Schedule of Rates 
8. Exhibit G - Audited Financial Statement for 2016-2017 of JSA 

I have enclosed an original of the Application and II copies. I would ask that you fil e-stamp one copy and 
return it to me in the enclosed self-addressed, prepaid enve lope. If you need any further info rmation or 
have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me. 

Sincere ly, 

~~~ 
rgoff@ kkhb1aw.com 
220568 



COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY 
BEFORE THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

IN THE MA TIER OF: 

RECE~\/ED 

OCT 11 2018 

PUBLIC SERVICE 
COMMISSION 

JOINT APPLICATION OF JOANN 
ESTATES UTILITIES, INC. AND 
PADUCAH-McCRACKEN COUNTY 
JOINT SEWER AGENCY TO APPROVE 
THE TRANSFER OF WASTEWATER 
COLLECTION SYSTEMS SERVING THE 
WILMINGTON CHILES AND 

CASE NO. 2018-00 

JOANN ESTATES SUBDIVISIONS IN 
McCRACKEN COUNTY, KENTUCKY 

JOINT APPLICATION OF JOANN ESTATES UTILITIES, INC. AND 
PADUCAH-McCRACKEN COUNTY JOINT SEWER AGENCY TO APPROVE THE 

TRANSFER OF WASTEWATER COLLECTION SYSTEMS SERVING THE 
WILMINGTON CHILES AND JOANN ESTATES SUBDVISIONS IN MCRACKEN 

COUNTY, KENTUCKY 

Joann Estates Utilities, Inc. ("Joann Estates") and the Paducah-McCracken County Joint 

Sewer Agency ("JSA") hereby request the approval by the Public Service Commission of 

Kentucky ("Commission") under KRS 278.020(6) of the transfer from Joann Estates to JSA of 

the wastewater collection systems serving the Wilmington Chiles and Joann Estates subdivisions 

in McCracken County, Kentucky (the "Collection Systems"). In support of their application, 

Joann Estates and JSA state the following: 

1. The Public Service Commission of Kentucky has jurisdiction over this application 

under KRS 278.020(6). 

2. Joanne Estates intends to transfer and JSA intends to accept the Collection 

Systems in accordance with a Transfer Agreement between JSA and Joann Estates dated July 30, 

2018 (the "Transfer Agreement"). A copy of the Transfer Agreement is attached hereto as 

Exhibit "A" and incorporated herein. 
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3. Joann Estates Utilities, Inc. is one of the two joint applicants herein. Joann 

Estates states as follows: 

• Its mailing address is 6500 Old Highway 60 West, Paducah, Kentucky 42001. 

• Its electronic mail address is waidbrian@gmail.com. 

• It is incorporated in the Commonwealth of Kentucky. 

• It was incorporated in the Commonwealth ofKentucky on September 10, 1976; 

• It is in good standing in the Commonwealth of Kentucky, which is its state of 

incorporation. 

• It provides wastewater collection and treatment services to the Wilmington Chiles, 

Joann Estates and Timberland subdivisions in McCracken County, Kentucky as 

authorized by the Public Service Commission of Kentucky. 

• A copy of its Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws are attached hereto as Exhibit "B". 

• A copy of the Resolution of Joann Estates authorizing the transfer of the Collection 

Systems under the Transfer Agreement and the filing of this application is attached 

hereto as Exhibit "C". 

• Joann Estates does not hold any customer deposits for customers located in the 

Wilmington Chiles and Joann Estates subdivisions. 

• Joann Estates has no appraisals of the Collection Systems. 

• Joann Estates receives no ad valorem tax bill for the Collection Systems. 

• A copy of the written communications between Joann Estates and the Kentucky 

Division of Water regarding this matter is attached hereto as Exhibit "D". 

• Joann Estates shall retain ownership and maintenance responsibility for the lagoons 

associated with the Collection Systems. Joann Estates shall close and decommission 
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the treatment plants associated with the Collection Systems. Joann Estates intends to 

request that JSA assist in the closure and decommissioning of the treatment plants by 

draining off the top from the mechanical portions of the treatment plants. 

4. Paducah-McCracken County Joint Sewer Agency is the other joint applicant 

herein. JSA states as follows: 

• Its mailing address is 621 No1ihview Street, Paducah, Kentucky 42001. 

• Its electronic mailing address is jhodges@jointsewer.com. 

• It is a joint sewer agency established under KRS 7 6.231 on July 1, 1999 by identical 

enacting ordinances ofthe City of Paducah, Kentucky and McCracken County, 

Kentucky. 

• Copies of such enacting ordinances are of record in Public Service Commission of 

Kentucky Case Number 2013-00333. 

• John Hodges is Executive Director of JSA and has been authorized to execute this 

Joint Application on behalf of JSA. 

• . A copy of the Resolution and Minutes of JSA authorizing th~ receipt of the Collecti0n 

Systems under the Transfer Agreement and the filing of this application is attached 

hereto as Exhibit "E". 

• JSA's current schedule of rates is attached hereto as Exhibit "F". 

• JSA will charge the residents of the Wilmington Chiles and Joann Estates 

subdivisions in accordance with its schedule of rates generally applicable to its 

customers. 

• JSA's regional facility plan has not changed since submitted in Public Service 

Commission ofKentucky Case Number 2013-00013. 
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• To the knowledge of its Executive Director, JSA is not subject to any legal actions 

except Commonwealth of Kentucky, Environmental and Public Protection Cabinet v. 

Paducah McCracken County Joint Sewer Agency, Franklin Circuit Court, Civil 

Action No. 07-CI-1252. The parties continue to work under a Consent Decree 

entered on August 16, 2007 to address combined stormwater and sanitary sewer 

overflows under federal and state guidelines. 

• JSA has received the following notices of violation since Public Service Commission 

of Kentucky Case Number 2013-00333: 

• Paducah Permit #KY0022799 

3/1/17: elevated effluent total residual chlorine which was rescinded by KY 

DOW 4/5/17 after discovery that total residual chlorine was not elevated. 

• Reidland Permit #KY002581 0 

6/20/18: failing to report portions ofthe Discharge Monitoring Report for 

December 2017. JSA responded that the report contained the information, 

but the lab submitted it under a different parameter synonym than the 

report recognized. This was corrected and resubmitted prior to the notice of 

violation. 

• Woodlawn Permit #KY0025828 

1/13/15: elevated BOD loadings in effluent, resolved 1/13115; 

7/11116: elevated BOD loadings in effluent, resolved 8/11116; and 

7/18/18: elevated BOD loadings in effluent, elevated TSS and pH. No 

response was necessary. The Woodlawn permit is for a complete biological 
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process (or facultative) lagoon. There are no mechanical processes 

involved and the lagoon is 1 00% nature dependent. 

• JSA plans to arrange for the construction of connection facilities to connect the 

Collection Systems to JSA's system. JSA expects the cost of such connection to 

exceed $350,000.00. JSA expects to obtain a grant to offset some of that expense. 

• To the knowledge of its Executive Director, JSA has communicated verbally but not 

in writing with the Kentucky Division of Water regarding transfer of the Collection 

Systems. 

5. JSA has the, "financial, technical, and managerial abilities to provide reasonable 

service" as required by KRS 278.020(5). As evidence thereof, JSA states: 

• JSA currently provides wastewater collection and treatment services to customers in 

the City of Paducah and McCracken County. 

• JSA's wastewater collection and treatment system includes the following: 

• 385 miles of gravity sanitary sewer, 

• 41 miles of combined storm and sanitary sewer, 

• 58 miles of sanitary sewer force main, 

• 6,400 manholes, 

• 30,000 sanitary laterals, 

• Paducah Wastewater Treatment Plant- 9 million gallon per day capacity, 

• Reidland Wastewater Treatment Plant - 1 million gallon per day capacity, and 

• Woodlawn Wastewater Treatment Facility- 0.900 million gallon per day 

capacity. 

5 



• JSA's Audited Financial Statements for fiscal years 2016 and 2017 are attached 

hereto as Exhibit "G." 

• The following are the name and class of JSA employees certified by the Kentucky 

Energy and Environmental Cabinet: 

Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator: 

• Class I- Danny Knox and Mitch Jameson; 

• Class II- Dennis Rednour, Lynn Arant, Mike Grimm; 

• Class III- Todd Teas, Zach Roach, Bobby Scott; and 

• Class IV - Kevin Bailey and Chris Hatton. 

Wastewater Collection System Operator: 

• Class III - Jamie McKinney and Ethan Hays; 

• Class IV- Mitch Jameson. 

6. It is necessary to encourage the regionalization and consolidation of wastewater 

systems. See KRS 224A.300(1). 

7. The transfer of the Collection Systems has been approved by JSA and Joann 

Estates and is otherwise in accordance with law. 

8. The transfer of the Collection Systems is for the proper purpose of consolidating 

under JSA wastewater collection and treatment systems in McCracken County, Kentucky. 

9. The public interest is served by the transfer in that the residents of Wilmington 

Chiles and Joann Estates subdivisions will benefit from JSA's greater revenue base and 

additional technical expertise and equipment. 

WHEREFORE, Joann Estates and JSA respectfully request that the Public Service 

Commission of Kentucky: 
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a. Approve the transfer of the Collection Systems from Joann Estates to JSA under 

KRS 278.020(6); 

b. Find that JSA has the financial , technical, and managerial abilities to provide 

reasonable service to the customers of Joann Estates; 

c. Determine that the transfer of the Collection Systems from Joann Estates to JSA 

is in accordance with law, is for a proper purpose, and is consistent with the 

public interest; and 

d. Provide Joann Estates and JSA such other relief as they may appear to be entitled. 

Respectfully submitted, 

KEULER, KELLY, HUTCHINS, 
BLANKENSHIP & SIGLER, LLP 
100 SOUTH 4TH STREET, SUITE 400 
PADUCAH, KY 42001 
Telephone: (270) 448-8888 
Facsimile: (270) 448-0998 

By~W.Jt# *ROW:GOfr 
rgoff@kkhblaw. com 

ATTORNEYS FOR JSA AND JOANN ESTATES WITH 
RESPECT TO THIS APPLICATION 
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JOANN ESTATES UTILITIES, INC. 

B~JJ 
Brian Waid, President 

VERIFICATION 

The undersigned states that he has read the foregoing and that the same is true to the best 
ofhis knowledge, information and belief. 

~w3 
Bnan Waid, President 

STATE OF KENTUCKY ) 

COUNTY OF MCCRACKEN ) 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this a_Jday of 
l'e-1-ober , 2018 by Braid Waid, President ofJoann Estates Utilities, Inc. 

My commission expires: {/.P''- j / /~ 0<040? 
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PADUCAH-McCRACKEN COUNTY JOINT 
SEWER AGENCY 

VERIFICATION 

The undersigned states that he has read the foregoing and that the same is true to the best 
of his knowledge, information and belief. 

STATE OF KENTUCKY ) 

COUNTY OF MCCRACKEN ) 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _hl day of 
Chloher= , 2018 by John Hodges, Executive Director of Paducah-McCracken County Joint 
Sewer Agency. 

My commission ex pi res : ....... ~.LWF::..:.M-=·~_1 _.:i_._. -=;{-=0""-=c2'--":;l.____;___ 
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EXHIBIT A 

Transfer Agreement 



213542 

TRANSFER AGREEMENT 

TillS TRANSFER AGREEMENT made and entered into this ?~ day of -' 1A L..V , 2018, by 
and between PADUCAH MCCRACKEN COUNTY JOINT SEWER AGENCY ("JSA") and JOANN 
ESTATES UTILITIES, INC., ("Joann Estates"). 

WITNESETH: 

WHEREAS, Joann Estates desires to transfer the wastewater collection facilities for Joann Estates 
and Wilmington Chiles subdivisions in McCracken County, Kentucky to JSA and JSA has agreed to accept 
such facilities in accordance with the terms and conditions of this agreement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, for valuable consideration, the legal adequacy and sufficiency of which is 
hereby acknowledged by all parties, the parties do covenant and agree as follows: 

1. TRANSFER AND ACCEPTANCE. 

1.1 Description of Agreement. Subject to the terms and conditions ofthis Agreement, Joann 
Estates shall sell and transfer unto JSA and JSA shall purchase and receive from Joann Estates, the 
wastewater collection facilities and equipment (the "Facilities") serving the Joann Estates and Wilmington 
Chiles subdivisions of McCracken County, Kentucky, including the sanitary sewer lines, force mains, 
equipment, structures, easements, permits and licenses used to collect and transport wastewater in the Joann 
Estates and Wilmington Chiles subdivisions, with all appurtenances and rights and privileges arising 
therefrom or relating thereto (the "Assets"), but specifically excluding the package treatment plant, the 
lagoon property, any accounts receivable, any customer deposits, and any contracts, contract obligations, 
responsibilities or liabilities of Joann Estates, none of which are assumed or shall be assumed by JSA. 

1.2 Title to be Delivered. Joann Estates shall transfer marketable fee simple title to the Assets 
to JSA. The Assets shall not be subject to any lien or adverse interest of another except as may be 
acceptable to JSA. JSA may have a title examination performed on the Assets at its cost. 

1.3 Documents of Transfer. Joann Estates shall execute all documents of transfer, including 
appropriate and recordable deeds of conveyance and bills of sale. All documents of transfer shall be duly 
authorized by appropriate resolution of Joann Estates. 

2. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF JOANN ESTATES. 

2.1 Organization and Authority. Joann Estates represents and warrants to JSA that Joann 
Estates is a duly organized and legal corporation in existence under laws ofthe Commonwealth of Kentucky 
and has absolute authority to execute and deliver the documents regarding the transactions contemplated by 
this Agreement. 

2.2 Merchantable Title. Jorum Estates represents and warrants to JSA that it has full and 
complete merchantable title to its real and personal properties. JSA may waive any defect at its option. 

2.3 Condition of Facilities and Operations. Joann Estates represents and warrants to JSA that 
Joanne Estates' facilities and operations have been and are in compliance with all federal, state, and local 



law, as well as any permits issued by the Kentucky Departments for Environmental Protection, Division of 
Water, with the exception of those violations identified on Schedule 2.3 attached hereto. 

2.4 Adverse Proceeding. Joann Estates represents and warrants to JSA that Joann Estates' is 
not presently a party to any judicial or administrative proceeding, nor has it knowledge of any threatened or 
imminent judicial or administrative proceeding. 

3. OBLIGATIONS OF JOANN ESTATES PRIOR TO CLOSING. 

3.1 Obligations to Continue Management of Facilities. From and after the date of the 
execution of this Agreement to date of closing, Joann Estates shall continue the management, operation, and 
maintenance of the Assets in a sound and reasonable manner and in accordance with wastewater collection 
and treatment best practices. Additionally, Joann Estates shall continue to collect its charges from its 
customers in the usual and customary manner and shall maintain good operating and accounting records. 

3.2 Prohibition Against Further Liability and Expenditures. From and after the date of the 
execution of this Agreement to date of closing, Joann Estates shall not incur any additional liability or debt 
nor make any expenditure of funds unless such liability, debt, or expenditure is in the ordinary course of 
business and reasonably necessary to the continued operations of Joann Estates, or Joann Estates' 
compliance with its obligations. 

3.3 Information to be Disclosed to JSA. Joann Estates shall provide to JSA full and complete 
access to all and copies of files related to the Assets, records, documents, discharge monitoring reports, 
maps and writings, and JSA may request that Joann Estates personnel be available to JSA to be interviewed 
about operational matters, or otherwise provide information regarding the operation of the Assets. 

3.4 Access to Real and Personal Property. Joann Estates shall provide to JSA full and complete 
access to the real and personal properties pertaining to the Assets. JSA shall have the right to fully inspect 
same, and perform any test or study as relates to same. Joann Estates shall identify to JSA any known 
defects or needs of imminent repair or replacement regarding any of the Assets. Additionally, Joann Estates 
shall identify and provide to JSA any manufacturer's warranties, documents of purchase, service agreements 
or other written representations as relate to any of the Assets. 

3.5 Approvals. Following the execution ofthis Agreement the parties shall file a joint petition 
with the Kentucky Public Service Commission seeking the approval of the transfer contemplated in this 
agreement. JSA shall pay the normal and customary attorney's fees and costs associated with the 
preparation and prosecution of such petition. Joann Estates shall pay the attorney's fees and costs associated 
with providing any post approval reports to the Kentucky Public Service Commission. Additionally, JSA 
may initiate at its cost, and Joann Estates shall cooperate in, he appropriate proceedings before any state or 
federal agencies for the consent and approval of the transa~tions contemplated by this Agreement. 

4. OBLIGATIONS OF JSA PRIOR TO CLOSING. 

4.1 Investigation. From and after the date of execution of this Agreement, JSA may 
immediately commence its due diligence and inspection of the Assets, including the physical assets and all 
documents and records relating to the Assets, and of the document and records relating to the fmancial 
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worth and condition of Joann Estates. JSA may employ, at its expense, any engineer, accountant, attorney, 
or any other expert to perform any part of the investigation and inspection to be performed by JSA. 

4.2 Approvals. Following the execution of this Agreement the parties shall file a joint petition 
with the Kentucky Public Service Commission seeking the approval of the transfer contemplated in this 
agreement. JSA shall pay the normal and customary attorney's fees and costs associated with the 
preparation and prosecution of such petition. Additionally, JSA may initiate at its cost, and Joann Estates 
shall cooperate in, the appropriate proceedings before any state or federal agencies for the consent and 
approval of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement. 

4.3 Documents of Transfer. JSA shall bear the cost ofthe preparation of all documents of 
transfer, including any deeds of conveyance and bills of sale which shall be available for inspection by 
Joann Estates prior to the time of closing. 

5. CONDITIONS PRECEDENT TO TRANSFER AND ACCEPTANCE. 

5.1 Conditions Precedent. NotwHhstanding the foregoing transfer and acceptance, this sale and 
transfer and purchase and acceptance shall be subject to the following conditions precedent: 

5 .1.1 Title to the real and personal property transferred herein shall be marketable fee 
simple title free and clear of all liens or adverse interests except those acceptable to JSA; 

5 .1.2 The transfer and assignment shall be fully and fmally approved by applicable state 
and federal agencies, specifically including the Kentucky Public Service Commission; 

5.1.3 The assets to be received or accepted by JSA as provided for herein are acceptable 
to JSA at its sole and absolute discretion 

5 .1.4 The Assets to be transferred herein shall be in a working and operable condition 
and good state of repair; 

5.1.5 All other representations and warranties of Joann Estates to JSA have been fully 
satisfied and complied with; and 

5.2 Satisfaction of Conditions Precedent. On. the date of closing, the conditions precedent shall 
be fully satisfied and complied with. In the event any one of the aforesaid conditions precedent is not fully 
satisfied and complied with, JSA, at its option, may terminate this Agreement, and upon such termination, 
the Agreement shall be of no further legal force and effect. Upon such termination, the Joann Estates shall 
not be liable to JSA in any manner whatsoever. 

6. CLOSING. 

6.1 Date and Place of Closing. Upon JSA's determination that all conditions precedent have 
been fhlly satisfied and complied with, JSA shall give written notice of such fact to Joann Estates. Closing 
shall take place as soon as practicable following the date of said notice, but in no event shall it be more than 
30 days from notice. 
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6.2 Documents of Transfer. At the time of closing, Joann Estates shall tender to JSA properly 
executed documents oftransfer including appropriate resolutions of Joann Estates authorizing the transfer 
and appropriate deeds of conveyance and bills of sale. Additionally, at the time of transfer, Joann Estates 
shall tender to JSA all records and documents related to the Assets including, but not limited to customer 
accounts and files, engineering plans, fmancial statements, audits, easements, contracts with customers, etc. 

6.3 Notice of Closing to Joann Estates Customers. In the event there is any requirement that 
notification of fmal transfer of Joann Estates' assets and property be given to the customers of Joann Estates 
by order of the Kentucky Public Service Commission or otherwise, Joann Estates agrees to provide such 
notification at its cost and expense. 

7. OBLIGATIONS OF JOANN ESTATES' SUBSEQUENT TO CLOSING. 

Immediately subsequent to closing, Joann Estates shall utilize its best efforts to assist JSA in 
transferring the customer accounts and ftles to JSA and to otherwise cooperate and assist JSA to finalize the 
transfer of property and the assumption of operation of the Assets by JSA. Joann Estates shall not do any 
act or omit lo perform any act which is adverse or inimical to this Agreement. 

8. POST-CLOSING OBLIGATIONS OF JSA. 

From and after closing, JSA shall assume full control of the operation of the Assets and provide 
wastewater collection and treatment services to the Joann Estates and Wilmington Chiles subdivisions of 
McCracken County, Kentucky in accordance with its policies and procedures, as amended from time to 
time. 

9. MISCELLANEOUS. 

9.1 Entire Agreement. This Agreement repr~sents the entire agreement by and between the 
parties hereto, and all prior promises, representations, covenants and understandings are fully merged 
herein. There arc no other promises, tenns, conditions, or obligations other than those specifically contained 
herein. 

9.2 Captions. The captions appearing in this Agreement have been asserted for the purpose of 
convenience and ready reference. They do not purport to, and shall not be deemed to, defme, limit, or 
extend the scope or intent ofthe clauses to which they pertain. 

9.3 Applicable Law-Venue. It is mutually understood and agreed that this Agreement shall be 
governed by the laws of the Commonwealth of Kentucky as to both interpretation and perfonnance. The 
venue of any legal action relating to this Agreement or the transactions contemplated herein shall be in the 
court of appropriate jurisdiction in McCracken County, Kentucky or the U.S. District Court for the Western 
District of Kentucky, Paducah Division. 

9.4 Bindipg Effect. This Agreement shall bind and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto, 
and each of their respective successors and assigns. 
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9.5 Assignment. This Agreement, any interest herein, or any claim arising hereunder, shall not 
be transferred by either party without the prior written consent of the other party. Any such assignment 
shall be void. 

9.6 Notices. Notice to JSA and Joam1 Estates shall be given at the following addresses: 

JOANN ESTATES: 6500 Highway 60 West 
Paducah, Kentucky 42001 

JSA: 621 Northview Street 
Paducah, Kentucky 42001 

9. 7 Severability. The parties agree that if a court of competent jurisdiction holds any one or 
more of the paragraphs or subparagraphs of this Agreement to be invalid or ineffective for any reason, any 
such paragraph or subparagraph will be deemed separate from the remainder of this Agreement and will not 
affect the validity and enforceability of the remaining provisions. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have set their hands on the date first above written. 

PADUCAH MCCRACKEN COUNTY JOINT SEWER AGENCY 

1JVE DIRECTOR 

JOANN ESTATES UTILITIES, INC. 

( j . -~ ~ 
By: \~~ cJ.a . 

BRIAN W AID, PRESIDENT 
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STATEOFKENTUCKY ) 
COUNTY OF McCRACKEN ) 

Sub~((J'ih~d ~r~ld-$Wer.n t9. b.e£ore,,p:~~: this·.~ day ¢f JH) y . 2018, by John Hodges, 
Executive Director, on behalf of Paducah McCracken County Joint Sewer Agency, on behalf of said entity. 

My commission expires: _t2p.J.{.u 1t Ra_». 

STATEOFKENTUCKY ) 
COUNTY OF McCRACKEN ) 

~4LuV-- al-w'- ~-~J.-r=----
N6TAI{Y PlJBtlC, STATE AT LARtrt~ Q 

Notary ID# $9j7Ss-

Subscribed and sworn to before me this ,#Sih_~fay of 4:?iZi / . 2018, by Brian Waid, 
President of Joann Estates Utilities, Inc., on behalf of said entity. 

My commission expires: ~0 1'4 ;2o:<.:z:-. 

/~/;~ 2/- ~~-
~~VPUBLIG, STATE~<ifeLr-____ nmu --

Notary LD# 6Cj c:Y?.s..-s=_ 
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EXHIBIT B 

Joann Estates 

Articles of Incorporation 

and 

Bylaws 



Alison Lundergan Grimes 

Secretary of State 

Certificate 

l, Alison Lun.dergan Grimes, Secretary of State fo r the Commonwealth of 
Kentucky, do hereby certify that the forego ing writing has be n ca refull y 
compared by me with the original thereof, now in my official u tody as 
Secretary of tate and remaining on file in my office, and found to be a true 
and correct copy of 

ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION OF 

JOANN E~>T ATES U1 ILITIES, INC. FILED SEPTEMBER 10, 1976. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand anJ affixed my 
Official Seal a t Frankfort, Kentucky, this 13th day of March, 2018. 

~-~tr"'a~ 
Alison Lundergan Crimes 
Secretary of State 
Commonwealth of Kentucky 
rpachcco - Cer tificate JD: 20016 1 
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OFFIC:E OF 
SECRETARY OF STATE 

OREXELL R. DAVIS 
:i£!crctary 

FRANKFORT, 
KENTUCKY 

CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION 

I. DREXEI~L R. DAVIS, Secretory of Stnte of tlu>. Comnwnwealth of Kentucky, do 
hereby certify that Articles of Incorporation of 

JOANN ESTATES UTJT.ITIES INC. 
------~--~----------------------

whose initial flgenl for proceu u BILLY GENE WAlD 

ROUTE NO. 2 

PADUCAH, K~NTUCKY 
and whose afidre$tt i! -------- _____ _ 

duly signed occorrling to law, hnve been filed in my office. I further certify that aU 
taxe11, feetJ and charges payable upon lhe filing of .H1id Articles of Incorporation hnve 
been paid. 

SECRETARY OF STATE 

Given under my hand oncl seal of Office as Secretary o/ 

Stotc, at Frankfort, Ke11tucky, this - W.t-h ---- --·-

day of --- - -sEPTu!B"lR - _, 19 16 

~A!~tP. __ ~_:~--- ·----
~~CRtrrA.nV 0,. STAT£ 

------ ABtlto-fMn-eEcnET...RYo~·--- - - -



0'- I • 0 ( I ,• ~_..~o' :·.=. 
ORIGINAL COPY 

FILED AND RECORDED 
SECilflARY Of STillE Of KENTIICKV 

f•"..AIJNoll.1, ._uuuu-.r 

s: t> 1 (\ l'·~·;r; 

B~,c:<,\~11t4-
l-d§'""'""' ,,, ..... 

. : 

AHTICLc-3 ,JF Il·ltJ)Ii.POH/.;Tlui\ 

J• )Ai'Jl\i E.STJ\ TES UTILITib, 

The corporation is hereby organized under the laws of the State 

of Kentucky, to be known as "Joann Estates Utilities, Inc." 

iJ 

The duration of the corporation shall be perpetual. 

III 

Tbe purpose o·f thr~ corporation slii'lll be to pu.rchase, lease, build, 

1,-,y, cunstruct, ulte:c, main·taln fll\d opP.rate fJ s<mitury ~ewage treatment 

!Jl<~nt, wi t.h o connecting collection system, ·to be located ln if!cCracken 

County, Kentucky, p:roviJing for hire, sanitary sewage f<Jcilities, primar-

ily, for the real estate development known as Joann ~states Subdivision, 

Phase I, and uduJ.tions and aduitional ph~Ges thereof and thereto, and 

then, such other adjacent property as may be, from time to time, feasible; 

to purch~se, le~sc nnd secure such real estate, easements and other 

be necess<n·y tv effect the proper operation of such plant; to sell, lea::;e 

or glve tapping rights to the connectir.g collection system of said t:ceat-

ment plant to such landowners ln said subdiv·i..sion and additions thereto 

and those of adjacent property, when feasible, wishing t.o purchase said 

tapping right~; to lease, for a monthly service charge, the treatment 

far;ilities of said plant to those londowners who have acquired said 

i:.applng rights; to sell, transfer and c0nvey the sani ta:r:y sewr.ge treatment 

....,, r I. 7. 1 ~M JJ .. U ...- r< n 
ATTCJnN.-;V ,lr\T l-AW 

:.ol"' CITI.Z:QNB ~NK DUII.tJIIHO 

['A..-.:CTC.\.Jt. JC"KMTUCtc'"lr 4.tl'001 



plant and connecting syste1n to any gove:mmental unit or agency that will 

assume the operati0n of said system, <:~nd to do all things and to trans-

act any und ull lawful business for ~1ich corporations may be incor­

por;,ted under the laws of i<:entucky. 

IV 

The authorized stock of tl1is corporation shall consist of 2000 

shares of stock of no par value, with each having equal voting rights. 

v 

Tilt.) ilddre~s of the initial rc~lstered office of this corporation 

in the Stat.;:, of Kentucky shall be Haute ,·.!o. 2, Paducah, Kentucky 42001. 

The initial registered agent of this corporation shall be Billy Gene 

y.,raid, whose aduress is H.oute l'jo. 2, Paducah, l(entucky 42.001. 

VI 

The number of directors .constituting the initial Board of Direc­

tors shall be one (l) director, and Billy Gene Waid, whose address 

is Haute No. ::!, Paducah, Ke11tucky 42001, shal1 serve as thB director 

until the first <wnual meeting of stockholders or until his successor 

be elected and qualified. The membership of the Boc:rd of Dir.ec:tors 

may be incress~ci at any meeting of stockholders. 

V.LI 

fhe name and address of ea;:h incorpoL·ator 

Billy Gene Wnid 
houte J~o. 2 

]. (' . 
. u. 

Paducah, Kentucky 42001 

Joann Waid 
i.'toute i~o. 2 
~ad~cah, Kentucky 42001 
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VIII 

The authority to make by-laws shall be vested in the Board of 

Directors and may be exercised by affirmative vote af a majority of the 

duly elected directors, subject only to the power of the stockholders 

to change or repeal such by-laws by an affirmative vote of the majority 

of the stockholders. 

IX 

The officers shall consist of a president, vice president, a 

secretary, and a treasurer, and such other officers as may be provided 

by the by-laws, from time to time, and all officers shall serv~ for such 

term as thn by-laws may provide. Any two offices may be held by the 

same person, except that the offices of president and secretary may not 

be held by the same person. The officers of the corporation shall exer­

cise such powers as may be vested in them from time to time by the by­

laws and by tho Board of Directors. The officers of the corporation 

shall be ele~ted by the Board of Dire~tors until and unless a different 

provision is made for their election by the affirmative vote of a majority 

of the stockholders. 

IN" TESTIMONY WHEREOF, witneso the signature of Billy Gene Waid 

and Joann \1/aid on this 9th day of September 1976. 

STATE OF KENTL'CKY 
COUNTY OF McCRACKEN 

!, Dian<J Myers, a Notary Public within and for the state and county 

afore~aid, do hereby certify that the foregoing Articles of Incorporation 
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were this day produced before me by Billy Gene Waid and Joann Waid and 

the same were acknowledged by them to be their act and deed. 

My commisslon expires on the 22nd day of .January 1978. 

Witness my hand and seal of office on this the 9th day of 

September 1976. 

--···· ' ·. ·~·· ~ ... . .. 

Di ana4A"(~'otaryt@Jl.i,.c 
State of Kentucky at Large 

nie lorllColnij instrumm~J wos 
pre~reod by; . 

WILliAM 8 BYRD 
1\no:nav At Law 
PnducQh. Kenturky .#~

?jf;Z4«-t,q ·/, ~/ ,. ~ 
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EXHIBIT C 

Joann Estates Resolution 

Authorizing 

Transfer Agreement 



COMitAN\' RESOLUTION 
OF JOANN ESTATt:s IJTIU'!lli.:..~, INC. 

·n1e undersigned, being all the director::; of Joann Estates Utilitir:s, a Kentucky 
Corporation. (the "Corporation"), having wru\'cd noti.:c:: of meeting and all oth\:r Jom~ul 
prerequisites and fol1Il3litics as may be required in the Article~ of Incorporation, Bylaws. or by 
lNw, du hereby ~t the following resolution ln-wit: 

WHEREAS. it is Lbc opiniun ofthe directors and shan:hultkrs oft.he Corporation 
that it would be ~nelicialro the Corporation !or thr: CMporation to enter into the uUm.:hcJ. 
Transfer /\~en! by and ~ween the Corporation and Poouush-McCracken County Joint 
Sewer Ag.c::nc)' ("JS.N') for the purch.ti!>C uoo )lUI~ of the collection sysi~"Im or Jmum Estates and 
Wilmington Clril~ subdivisions ("Coll-ection Syst(.."'llS"). 

NOW Til ER.EFORE,lbc um~.:lllrs nnd shareholders of th~: Corpt.1mliun dc"l h~rehy 
adopt the following n::solulinm:;: 

HI·:SOJ.VED, that Brizm Wt~ill. u~ Prc:sidem ofthc Corporntion, is uullulri7ed to 
execute the aUoched Tran.<;fcr Agrc<.mcnl by unc.l bt:t\\el!ll the Corporation and JSA 
for the purchasc :md Side oflh<: Collection Systems and consummal~ any transnc'lion 
cunle!mJllated therein, all of which (Ire h~rehy ratified. 

Fl J RTIIl:R RESOLVED, thul Briun W aid shall be authori:t.cd to ucton bchal f of the 
Corpornlion witJ1 respect to the Col11..'\:tion Systt:tns. 

Fl JRTIIH~ RESOLVED. thai thi1:1 Rc:sulutiun may be executed in :my numb~ of 
countr..-rpm1s, each of which when so executed shall he deemed an original and <tll of 
which taken tog<.1hcr81mll.:(.lllstilute on and the same instnu.ru.nt. A party's facsimile 
or dr:~.:tmnic transmission of such psny's signature on the execution pngc lu this 
Resolution shall be d«med by ~h party's originltl ~ig.nuhH-e. 

FURTHER RF.SOLVF.D, Brian Waid. ~ President of Joann Estate~, is h~TCby 
authorized to cnt~-r intu and execute and all documcnl.s noce&i8ry· lll con sum mate the 
lrunstC:r ufthe Collection Systems to JSA, including hut not limited lo lhc Tnmsft!r 
1\.gr~X.'Dl(..""Dl, !ID)' dc::ed(s) and the application and otht.."T document"i to be tiled with th~~ 
K~nrucky l~blic Scnicc Commi~sioil. 

This Resolulion adopted this2Lj day ofMuy, 201M. 

2>.\~~ (Jed. __ _ 
Brinn \yuid. P~id~1t 



EXHIBIT D 

Communication Between 

JSA and Kentucky Division 

Of Water 



Rob Goff 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

Brian Waid <waidbrian@gmail.com> 
Monday, May 21, 2018 2:40 PM 
Rob Goff 
Lagoon closer plan 

Here is email about lagoons 

Brian Waid 

From: "Becker, Jory (EEC)" <jory.becker@ky.gov> 
Date: Tuesday, November 1, 2016 at 1:10PM 
To: Brian Waid <waidbrian@gmail.com> 
Cc: "Goode, Greg (EEC)" <Greg.Goode@ky.gov> 
Subject: Closure Plan 

Brian, 

As discussed, just need a simple closure plan for the WWTPs. Basically what you will be doing to close the lagoons. 
Division of Waste Management has already been consulted and you can close them with the solids in-place. Let l)'le 
know if I can help further . 

 Sincerely, 

Jory 

Jory M. Becker, P.E. 

Environmental Engineering Branch Manager 



Water lnfrastrure Branch 

Kentucky Division of Water 

(502) 782-6887 
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EXHIBIT E 

JSA Resolution and Meeting Minutes 

Authorizing Transfer 

Agree~nent 



RESOLUTION OF BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
OF 

PADUCAH MCCRACKEN COUNTY JOINT SEWER AGENCY 

February 22, 2018 

BE IT RESOLVED, that the Paducah McCracken County Joint Sewer Agency shall 
move forward and consider the potential merger or acquisition of the Joann Estates and 
Wilmington Chiles waste water collection systems from Joann Estates Utilities, Inc. In 
furtherance of said merger or acquisition, the Board of Directors of JSA authorize, empower and 
direct John Hodges, as Executive Director of JSA, to take any steps necessary to begin said 
possible merger or acquisition, including the negotiation of a definitive agreement with Joann 
Estates Utilities, Inc. regarding the same, said agreement to be presented to the Board for fmal 
approval. 

IT IS HEREBY CERTIFIED, that the foregoing Resolution was duly authorized by the 
Board of Directors of the JSA on February 22, 2018, and that the foregoing resolution is a true 
and accurate statement of the resolution so adopted. 



PADUCAH-McCRACKEN JOINT SEWER AGENCY 
BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

APRIL 26, 2018 

A meeting ofthe Board ofDirectors ofthe Joint Sewer Agency was held on April26, 2018 at 
5:00p.m. at the JSA Meeting Facility, 700 Northview Street. The Chairman, Justin Hancock, 
and the Secretary were present. 

Attending: 

Board of Directors- Justin Hancock, Debbie Stone, Susan Carr, Jerry Beyer, Jason 
Coltharp, Sarah Holland 

JSA personnel- John Hodges, Josh Webb, Amy Darnell 

1. The meeting was opened with the Pledge of Allegiance to the flag. 

2. Jerry moved to approve the minutes from the March 22nd board meeting. The 
motion was seconded. The board voted 4 - 0 to approve the minutes as presented 
(Sarah and Jason had not arrived). 

3. John asked the board about their preference related to extending Williams, Williams, and 
Lentz to a fourth year for providing the annual audit. John noted Kemper was extended a 
fourth year when they had the contract. If the contract was extended with the fee adjusted 
by the March CPI-U, the total fee for the FY 18 audit would be $13,568.00. Susan moved 
to extend WWL a fourth year, adjusting the rate by the March CPI-U. The motion 
was seconded. The vote was 4 - 0. 

4. John presented the board with an open records policy for the board's review and approval. 
Jerry moved to approve the open records policy as presented. The motion was 
seconded. The vote was 5-0 (Sarah arrived by this point). 

5. John presented the board with the FY 19 salary pool adjustment. John mentioned that 
while the salary pool is proposed to remain the same as FY 18, that the average salary 
adjustment is proposed for 2.5%, due to retirements and hiring newer folks at lower 
salaries. Debbie moved to approve the salary pool adjustment as presented. The 
motion was seconded. The vote was 5 - 0. 

6. John presented the bid tabulation for the Calendar Year 2018 Rehabilitation Contract, and 
recommended award to the low bidder, Layne Inliner, LLC, for $902,159.50. Jerry 
moved to award the Calendar Year 2018 Rehabilitation Contract to Layne Inliner 
LLC for $902,159.50. The motion was seconded. The vote was 5 - 0. 



JSA Board Meeting Minutes, cont. 
4/26/18 

7. John presented the bid tabulation for the Paducah WWTP Electrical Improvements project, 
and recommended award to the low bidder, Matt Electric, LLC for $256,500.00. Debbie 
moved to award the Paducah WWTP Electrical Improvements project for 
$256,500.00 to Mott Electric, LLC for $256,500.00. The motion was seconded. The 
vote was 5 - 0. 

8. John presented the transfer agreement for the Waid Package Plant removal project. John 
mentioned the project is to go before the KIA board for approval on May 8th. Susan 
moved to approve the transfer agreement as presented. The motion was seconded. 
The vote was 5 - 0. 

9. John mentioned that Harrison Street Pump Station level controls malfunctioned over the 
weekend and needed replacement. He further discussed replacing the sole GE Fanuc PLC 
unit operating the station. The unit is around 18 years old, and was slated for replacement 
in a year or two, but with the necessary programming to get the new level controls to talk 
with the telemetry, John requested the board approve replacing the GE Fanuc now and 
putting the reprogramming costs toward the actual replacement of the unit. John presented 
the quote of $19,850 and sole source justification for Rick's Electric. Sarah moved to 
approve the quote and sole source justification as presented. The motion was 
seconded. The vote was 5 - 0. 

10. The board reviewed the board survey questionnaire from the City of Paducah and gave 
input on answers for submission. 

11. The board reviewed the overflow summary report (Jason arrived at this point). 

12. The board reviewed the Financial Reports for February and March. 

13. The board reviewed the Investment Summary for March. 

14. The board reviewed the Disbursements over $10,000 and Check History for March. 

15. The board reviewed the credit card statements and expense reports (none) for March. 

16. The board reviewed the Connection Fees Report for March. 

17. Sarah moved to enter executive session at 5:52p.m. for discussion or bearings which 
might lead to the appointment, discipline, or dismissal of an individual, employee, 
member, or student without restricting that employee's, member's, or student's right 
to a public hearing if requested. The motion was seconded. The vote was 6- 0. 

I 8. Jerry moved to exit executive session at 6:07 p.m. The motion was seconded. The 
vote was 6 - 0. 
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JSA Board Meeting Minutes, cont. 
4/26/18 

19. Jerry moved to adjourn the meeting at 6:08p.m. The motion was seconded. The vote 
was 6-0. 

Respectfully Submitted: 

tin Hancock, Chairman 
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EXHIBIT F 

JSA Rate Schedule 



. 
• r .. e 

A. WASTEWATER USER CHARGES 

From and after july 1, 201 7, the following rates shal l 
apply: 

$5.83 per 1,000 ga llons of water usage with 3,000 

gal lons minimum 

After july 1, 2017, the JSA may adj ust the listed 

.b 

l:.: ~'-. 1 \I ~.l r ,. 

t:i! C ~·t !1c ··:' ; • ,1 

rates in accordance with the consumer price index for all urban consumers ("CPI-U") 

B. INDUSTRIAL SURCHARGE 

Permirs are issued to certain industries that produce wastewate r of an unusual 
content or an abnormally high strength. Industries that qual ify, as determined by jSA, 
will pay a permit fee of $900 every three years. 

Additional surcha rge rates shall apply to each user of the treatment system that has 
received permiss ion from jSA to contribute excessive strength wastewater to the 
sewer system. 

Fo r the treatment of biological oxygen demand ("BOD") waste in a concentration 
exceed1ng 300 mg/1, an additional surcharge will be imposed as follows: 

• From ana after ju ly 1, 2017, a surcharge of $0.23 per pound of BOD. 

~or the treatment of waste containing total suspended solids ("TSS") 111 a 
concentration exceeding 350 mg/1, a surcharge will be imposed as follows: 

• Fro m and after july 1, 2017, a surcharge of $0.24 per pound ofTSS. 

For the treatrnent of ammonia as nitrogen ("NH3-N'') waste in a concentration 
exceed ing 25 mg/1, an additiona l surcharge will be impoc;ed as follows: 

001 



• From and after july 1, 2016, a surcharge of $0.59 per pound of Nf-13-N. 

For the treatment of oil and grease ("Oil & Grease") waste in a concentration 
exceeding 100 mg/1, an additional surcharge will be imposed as follows: 

• From and after july 1, 2016, a surcharge of $0.35 per pound of Oil & Grease. 

After july 1, 2017, the jSA may adjust these rates in accordance with the consumer 
price index for all urban consumers ("CPJ-U"). 

C. HAULED WASTE 

The JSA shall assess a fee for the treatment and proper disposal of acceptable waste 
that is generated within McCracken County and hauled to the Paducah Wastewater 
Treatment Plant. The following rates will apply for the disposal of hauled waste: 

From and after july 1, 2017, the charge will be $44.00 per 1,000 gallons of hauled 
waste. 

After july 1, 2017, the JSA may adjust these rates in accordance with the consumer 
price index for all urban consumers ("CPI-U"). 

JSA shall assess a fee for the treatment and proper disposal of acceptable waste that 
is generated outside of McCracken County and hauled to the Paducah Wastewater 
Treatment Plant. The fee for treatment and disposal of acceptable waste generated 
outside McCracken County shall be exactl.y double the fee charged for waste 
generated in McCracken County. 

Qualified haulers will also pay an annual fee for a disposal permit in the amount of 
$300. 

D. OTHER FEES 

i. TAP-ON FEE 

This is a fee assessed to recover the costs of constructing core facilities and 
appurtenances which make sewer service available. This fee would be due from every 
new customer that connects to the system. The fee is $1,950 per Equivalent 
Residential Unit (ERU). 

ii. CAPACITY FEE 

This fee is a charge to all new customers connecting to the jSA sanitary sewer system, 

and represents the purchase of their share of capacity. This fee would be due from 
every new customer that connects to the system. The fee is $350 per Equivalent 
Residential Unit (ERU). 

iii. LATERAL CONNECTION FEE 002 
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WILLIAMS WILLIAMS & LENTZ 
CERTIFIED l'UBLJC ACCOUNTANTS 

Independent Auditor's Heport 

Board of Directors 
Paducah McCracken Joint Sewer Agency 
Pnducah, Kentucky 

J. David Bailey, Ill 
Sue Cnmch-Grccnwcll 

Roger G. Harris 
Michael F. Kames 

Mark A. Thomas 
Ashley C. Grooms 
Kelly D. Scmggs 
Benjamin D. Tcer 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities of Paducah McCracken Joint 
Sewer Agency as of and for the years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016, and the related notes to the financial statements, 
which collectively comprise the Agency's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financh1l Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financiol statements in accordance with 
accounting principles generolly accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and 
maintenance of internal control relevant to the prcpamtion and fair presentution of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or eJTor. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial slutemcnts b~sed on om audits. We conducted our audits in 
accordance with auditing standarc;ls generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to 
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. 
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves perfom1ing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the ·amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or enor. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order lo 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
eff~ctiveness of the ei1tity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating 
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe tbe audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the fmaucial position of 
the business-type activities of the Paducah McCracken Joint Sewer Agcmcy, as of June 30, 2017 and 2016, and the 
respective changes in its financial position and cash flows thereof for the years then ended in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of Amt::rica. 

60 I .lcfl"crson Street 

PadtlCtlh, K Y 4200 I 
Ph: 270.443.3643 
Fx: 270.'144.0652 

r.o. Oo~ 2500 
Paducah, KY 42002-2500 

wwlcpa.cnm 

I !041'aris Rd. Suire 100 Ph: 270.247.2124 
Mayfield, KY 42066 Fx: 270.247.2028 



Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that management's discussion and 
analysis on pages 3 through 8 and schedules of employer's proportionate share of the net pension liability and employer 
contributions information on pages 24 and 25 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such 
information, although not a part of the basic fmancial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board, who considers it to be an essential part of fmancial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an 
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required 
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, 
which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the 
information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other 
lrnowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any 
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an 
opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that collectively comprise the 
Paducah McCracken Joint Sewer Agency's basic financial statements. The budgetary comparison information on page 26 
is presented for the purpose of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic fmancial statements. The 
budgetary comparison infonnation is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the fmancial statements. Such infonnation has been subjected to 
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including 
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the und~rlying accounting and other records used to prepare the 
financial statements or to the fmancial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the budgetary comparison infonnation is 
fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 26, 2017, on our 
consideration of the Paducah McCracken Joint Sewer Agency's internal control over fmancial reporting and on our tests 
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, and other matters. The 
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over fmancial reporting and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on 
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in 
considering Paducah McCracken County Joint Sewer Agency's internal control over fmancial reporting and compliance. 

1)~/ilz£;_ /~Ld 
Paducah, Kentucky 
October 26,2017 

WILLIAMS 
WILLIAMS 
& LENTZ -2-



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION



As management or the Pnd ucah McCt<tckcn Joint S~.:wcr Agency (JSA). we ofter readers of the JSA 's linancial 
sta tements this narrntiv~.: nverview and analysis ur the fin;lncialnctivitics for the lise a I year encleclJunc 30. 2017 . 

Financial Highlights 

N..:t capil<ll assets increased S27 I thousand u1w prior FY 
Total nl!t posi ti on i ncre~s..:d $607 th ousand ( 1.1 'it) during th e year 

• Total rewn ucs up $8 19 thousa nd ( I 0.5'/r) ova FY 10 16 
Oeht service coverage rat in <thovc level ur cumplinncc at 2.4 6 for FY 20 17 

Re<Juirecl Fin;Hicial Stalemcnls 

Statement of Net Position - Tile purpusc or til.: St<ll<.: tn ..:nt of Net Position is to repon all of the assets held and 
liabilities owed by the JSA. The sttl!ctnent ,,ilu11 s thc JSA 's level of investment in rc:sources (assets) and !he 
obligations to creditors (linbilitie ·). The differl:tH.:c between the assets unci liabilities is labeled net position Md is 
similar to owners' equity prese nted by~ commercial entlTprisc. The put pose of the JSA is not to accumulate net 
asse ts, but ra ther to reinvest in the tnfrastl uct ure and to build suflicient reserves in the event of an emergency. In 
general, increases in net posit ion indi c:1 te I hal thc lina ncial positi on of the JSA is improving over time. 

Siall! lll'nl ol Rcvcnlll'\. t. ~p~.:n -.c~ and ' !Jan !!~.:.~ 1 Nt:t l't lsi ll nn - The purpose of this statement is to identil'y th t: 
revenues generated and expenses im:u n cd hy the JSA . Til~ focus or this statement is to help the user identily the 
operating resu lts oJ' the JSA dunng the fis cal year. The diiTetencc between revenul.!s and expenses is t.:alled the 
cha ng!.! in net position and is similar tc1 net income reponed by a eommen;iul entity. 

Statement of' Cash Flows - The purpose of th <: Statement of Cash Flows is lo nnulyl,e the cash receipts <tnd 
disbursements made by th e JS A during 1h.: n,ca l year. The Slaltlllenl reports cash inAows <tnd omllows r..:suhing 
fmm three mai n business activities: orc1aling, fin ancin g and in vesting. The state ment ndclrcssl!s the sources and 
uses of cash, nncl tlw change in t'ash ba lanc~s f'rurn tht: prev ious rt:porti ng period. 



Financial Information 

EXHIBIT 1: Condensed Statements of Net Position (in thousands) 
FYE FYE Dollar Percent 

6/30/17 6/30/16 Change Change 
Assets 
Current assets $ 13,851 $ 13,993 $ (142) -1.0% 
Capital assets 9?,714 65,443 271 0.4% 
Restricted funds 1,170 1,150 20 1.7% 
Deferred charges & other sos 815 (8) -1.0% 

Total assets 81.543 81,401 141 0.2% 

Deferred Outnows of Resources 666 503 163 32.4% 

Liabilities & net position 
Current liabilities 2,562 2,-581 ( 19) -0.7% 
Noncurrent liabilities 23;541 23.854 (313) -1.3% 

Total liabilities 26,103 26,435 (332) -1.3% 

Deferred Inflows of Resources 68 36 32 88.9% 

Invested in capital assets, net 44,079 43,233 846 2.0% 
Restricted 1,170 !,ISO 20 1.7% 
Unrestricted 10.789 11,048 (259) -2.3% 

Total net position $ 56.038 $ 55.411 $ 60:Z 1.1% 

Capital Assets and Long-Term Debt Activity 

Net capital assets increased by $271 thousand during FY 2017. At the close of the current fiscal year, JSA had $102 
million in undepreciated cost of total capital assets. Capital assets may be acquired through purchase, by the 
completion of projects (either in-house or by contractors), or by contribution of assets to the JSA by private 
developers. 

JSA completed and placed the Homewood Avenue Wet Weather Storage Tank in service during the period for a 
total of $1.2 million, recording an additional $510 thousand in draws against a current Kentucky Infrastructure 
Authority (KIA) loan during the fiscal year. Two additional overflow storage tanks were either in the planning 
stages or under construction as of June 30, 2017. The building of these tanks was negotiated as part of the Long 
Term Control Plan (LTCP) required by the Consent Judgment with the Kentucky Environmental and Public 
Protection Cabinet and Environmental Protection Agency. The Agency will be in search of funding options in the 
years to come as they complete additional LTCP projects. 

The JSA continues to rebuild and rehabilitate the aging sewer infrastructure as well as extend sewers to previously 
unsewered and undeveloped areas of the city and county. The JSA is committed to capital investments in 
infrastructure assets to protect the integrity of, and enhance, the existing sewer system. 

Total Liabilities and Net Position 

Total liabilities decreased during FY 2017 by $332 thousand or -1.3% over FY 2016. The decrease in notes and 
bonds payable from $22.2 million 10 $21.6 million was offset by the increase in JSA's net pension liability from 
$2.7 million to $3.0 million. 

The JSA' s total net position increased by $607 thousand or 1.1% during FY 2017. Net capital assets less total debt 
increased by $846 thousand, but were offset by the $259 thousand decrease in unrestricted assets. 
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EXHIBIT 2: Condensed Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 
(in_thousands) 

FYE FYE Dollar Percent 
6/30/17 6/30/16 Change Change 

Revenues 
Operating revenues $ 7,949 $ 7,408 $ 541 7.3% 
Non-operating revenues 654 376. 278 73.9% 

Total revenues 8.603 7,784 819 10.5% 

Expenses 
Depreciation 2,830 2,705 125 4.6% 
Operating expenses 4,748 4,447 301 6.8% 
Non-operating expenses 482 465 17 3.7% 

Total expenses 8,060 7.617 443 5.8% 

Contributions 64 208 ( 144) -69.2% 

Change in net position 607 375 232 61.9% 

Beginning net position 55,431 55,056 375 0.7% 

Ending net (!Osition $56,038 $55,431 $ 607 1.1% 

Budget 

The JSA conducts its activities in accordance with a budget for operating revenues, operating expenses, and capital 
purchases. The JSA is required to adopt a budget annually. Through monitoring and review by the JSA Board, the 
Agency continuously meets its responsibility for sound financial management. 

Operating revenues for FY 2017 finished $541 thousand above the amount for the prior year. Sewer charges 
comprise the bulk of operating revenues and are billed based on customer water consumption. These charges came 
in $180 thousand more than budgeted for FY 2017. Operating expenses came in over budget for the fiscal year 
finishing $131 thousand above estimate. This is primarily due to the new pension and insurance reporting 
requirements mandated by GASB, which were unknown, and not reasonable to estimate, during the development of 
the operating budget. 

JSA received almost $64 thousand in capital contributions during the fiscal year. These contributions came in the 
forms of grant revenue of $5 thousand and developer non-cash contributions of $59 thousand. 

Results of Operations 

Total revenues of $8.6 million, showed an increase of $819 thousand or 10.5% from FY 2016. The March I, 2016 
rale increase was responsible for this growth in revenue. Total expenses increased $443 thousand or 5.8% from FY 
2016. 
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EXHIBIT 3: Detail of Operating Expenses (Excluding Depreciation) 
Operating Expenses 
(in thousands) FYE 6/30/17 FYE 6/30/16 

Salaries, wages and benefits $ 2,426 $ 2,305 
Chemicals, testing & solids disposal 426 354 
Utilities 808 777 
Material, supplies and repairs 508 475 
Fleet expense 92 76 
Professional fees 79 67 
Billing, collection and bad debts 189 178 
All other 220 215 

Total $ 4,748 $ 4447 

Salaries, Wages and Benefits 

Dollar 
Change 

$ 

$ 

121 
72 
31 
33 
16 
12 
II 
5 

301 

Percent 
Change 

5.2% 
20.3% 

4.0% 
6.9% 

21.1% 
17.9% 
6.2% 
2.3% 

6.8% 

Salaries, wages and benefits comprise the bulk of operating expenses. These expenses increased 5.2% over FY 
2016. This was made up mostly of increases in salaries, wages and overtime of $36 thousand and in increase of 
normal pension costs of $28 thousand. The JSA also recorded a $62 thousand increase in pension and health 
insurance expenses over the prior year due to the new reporting requirements mandated by GASB. Employees 
received annual wage increases during FY 2017 and 2016. 

Other Operating Expenses 

Chemicals, testing and solids disposal showed a $72 thousand increase from the prior year. Chemical usage 
amounts and costs vary from year to year based on a variety of factors, including economic conditions and pricing, 
as well as certain operational parameters which vary due to odor control requirements, treatment plant flows, and the 
maintenance of the bacterial inventory at the wastewater treatment plants. Solids disposal costs vary primarily based 
on the treated now amounts, the efficiency of the wastewater treatment plant digesters and the ability for the City of 
Paducah's composting facility to efficiently handle the Paducah wastewater treatment plant's fully digested sludge 
inventory. In times of low composting supply material (i.e. branches, leaves, sticks, etc.) or composting facility 
equipment breakdown, the JSA is forced to landfill sludge at higher costs. For FY 2017, JSA experienced higher 
costs associated with charges from the City of Paducah for composling. In addition, JSA was forced to landfill 
sludge at higher costs for an extended period, due to the inability of the City of Paducah to process sludge at times. 

The largest component of utilities expense is electricity costs. Electricity costs vary from year to year based on 
tlows received and pumped. For FY 2017, JSA experienced higher electrical costs associated with treatment 
activities. JSA has experienced slightly higher loadings at its Paducah Wastewater Treatment Plant from certain 
industrial dischargers: which require more electricity to provide for adequate treatment. While this is a cost 
increase, JSA recoups these costs through surcharges to industrial users. 

Materials, supplies and repairs are ordinary and necessary costs incurred to keep the sewer utility process, as well as 
JSA buildings and grounds, in good working order. This account showed a $33 thousand increase from the prior 
fiscal year. Repair costs for the treatment plant and lift stations were the primary cause for the increase. Repair 
costs vary significantly based on the type, equipment, and location of the work. 

The largest component of the material, supplies and repairs category is repairs, which include collection system 
point repairs, pump rebuilds, and plant equipment repairs. Contract labor is sometimes used for these repairs and is 
charged to this category, while internal labor for repair work is expensed to salaries and wages. Expenses are 
categorized using the three main components of a sewer system: pipes, pumps and motors. For FY 2017, several 
above-average cost activities were performed to rebuild pumps, generators, and other lift station and treatment 
components, which account for the increase. These activities were required to maintain the equipment in good 
working order, and prevent total replacement costs. Repairs were made as follows: 
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EXHIBIT 4: Repairs by Department (in thousands) 

Department 
Collection System (pipes) 
Lift Stations (pipes & pumps) 
Treatment Plants (pipes, pumps & motors) 
Total 

FYE 
2017 

$ 214 
69 

----22 
L..3A2 

FYE 
2016 

$ 216 
47 

____l]_ 
L_3ill 

Dollar 
Change 
$ (2) 

22 
21 

Percent 
Change 

-0.9% 
46.8% 
55.3% 
13.6% 

Fleet expense increased $16 thousand, or 21. I%, over the prior fiscal year. The JSA maintains a vehicle 
replacement program to cull the aging fleet and attempt to minimize extensive repair costs. It is important to note 
JSA's fleet expense costs for FY 2017 mirror FY 2015 costs. 

FY 20 I 7 professional fees were $I 2 thousand more than in FY 20 I 6. This account consists of legal and accounting 
fees, as well as contractual services, containing certain engineering fees and software contrac!Ual services. 
Contractual services were the primary cost increase for FY 2017; however, the costs for this category were $6 
thousand below budget. 

Paducah Water provides billing and collection services for the JSA. Bad debt write offs finished as expected at $56 
thousand. 

All other expenses totaled $220 thousand for FY 2017 and included costs for insurance, training and safety, office 
expense, public education, board of directors' expense and miscellaneous expense. The budget for all other 
expenses was $216 thousand. 

Debt Service Coverage 

Debt service coverage (DSC) ratio is an indicator of the JSA's ability to meet its debt obligations. The JSA Board 
strives to maintain a minimum DSC ratio of 1.30 times the required debt service payments. For purposes of this 
calculation, gross revenues in~lude investment income, grant revenues and connection fees, and expenses exclude 
the deduction for depreciation. The JSA has continued to exceed the minimum DSC ratio set by the board. The 
Agency's DSC ratio was 2.46 in 2017 and 2.55 in 2016. 

Relevant Current Economic Factors and Other Significant Matters 

New home construction in the area has been slow which is representative of the current U.S. market. The area has 
experienced a surge in the construction of apartments, with several hundred units either recently constructed or in 
some stage of construction. This construction trend will provide for a temporary surge in connection fees for JSA. 

Investment returns have continued to remain low. JSA has begun to see a slight increase in interest rates. This 
income will continue to fluctuate with adjustments in rates, due to the nature of JSA's investments. 

The Paducah McCracken Joint Sewer Agency entered into a Consent Judgment with the Kentucky Environmental 
and Public Protection Cabinet and the Environmental Protection Agency in September 2007 to bring combined and 
sanitary sewer overflows into compliance with Federal and State guidelines. The Agency's Long Term Control Plan 
(LTCP), a planning document mandated by the Consent Judgment, was approved on October 10,2016. This LTCP 
requires compliance within the combined sewers, sewers carrying both storm and sanitary flow, to be completed 
over a twenty-two year timeframe. The cost to bring the combined system into compliance, as outlined in the 
LTCP, is $102 million. This amount does not take into consideration any other capital projects JSA will have to 
fund over the next twenty-two years. As a result, future rate increases will be necessary to achieve this undertaking. 
JSA implemented a revision of rates effective March I, 2016, and July I, 2017. In addition, JSA has built-in the 
ability to adjust rate by the Consumer Price Index - Urban (CPI-U) for subsequent years. The JSA strives to utilize 
sound business principals while meeting the needs of the community and maintaining environmental compliance 
with Federal, State and local regulations. 
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The JSA will continue to pursue alternative means of funding in the form of grants and low-interest loans to aid in 
the funding of the Agency's capital expenditures. The JSA has been successful in securing $10.2 million in grants 
from the KIA and the United States Department of Agriculture Rural Development since FY 2005. The Agency was 
awarded and expended a Delta Regional Authority grant totaling $100 thousand during FY 2013 and an Economic 
Development Authority Grant totaling $315 thousand in FY 2015. These funds have been expended on projects 
relating to expansion of the collection system, maximization of flow at Paducah's wastewater lreatment plant, the 
separation of flow from JSA's combined sewer system, various compliance related planning documents, and the 
Massac Creek Interceptor Project, thus reducing the burden of these projects on JSA ratepayers. 

Requests for Additional Information 

This report is intended to provide readers with a general overview of the JSA's finances and to show the JSA's 
accountability for the money it receives. If you have questions about this report or need additional financial 
information, contact the JSA at 621 Northview Street, Paducah, KY 42001 or (270) 575-0056. 
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 



PADUCAH MCCRACKEN JOINT SEWER AGENCY 
STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION 

ASSETS 

Current Assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments and accrued interest 
Customer accounts receivable 
Grants and other receivables 
Accrued unbilled revenue 
Inventories and prepaid expenses 

Total current assets 

Noncurrent Assets: 
Utility plant and capital assets, net 
Restricted assets and investments 
Bond discount- net 
Other noncurrent assets 

Total noncurrent assets 

TOTAL ASSETS 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 

LIABILITIES 

Current Liabilities: 
Notes and bonds payable 
Accounts payable 
Salaries and benefits payable 
Other current liabilities 

Total current liabilities 

Noncurrent Liabilities: 
Notes and bonds payable 
Net pension liability 

Total noncurrent liabilities 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

Difference between projected and actual earnings 

NET POSITION 

Invested in capital assets, net 
of related debt 

Restricted for debt service 
Unrestricted -net assets 

TOTAL NET POSITION 

JUNE30 

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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s 
2017 

6,553,042 
5,861,876 

422,230 
33,301 

651,000 
329,090 

13,850,539 

65,713,831 
1,169,923 

47,010 
761,584 

67,692,348 

81,542,887 

665,651 

1,121,899 
426,864 

93,899 
918,932 

2,561,594 

20,513,205 
3,028,183 

23,541,388 

26,102,982 

67,739 

44,078,727 
1,169,923 

10,789,167 

$ 56,037,817 

-$ 
2016 

5,722,531 
6,754,519 

494,863 
29,993 

650,000 
340,680 

13,992,586 

65,443,109 
1,149,796 

53,039 
761,664 

67,407,608 

81,400,194 

503,015 

1,073,797 
500,830 

86,523 
920,198 

2,581,348 

21,136,109 
2,717,993 

23,854,102 

26,435,450 

36,299 

43,233,203 
1,149,796 

11,048,461 

$ 55,431,460 



PADUCAH MCCRACKEN JOINT SEWER AGENCY 
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

YEARSENDEDJUNE30 

Operating Revenues: 2017 
Charges for services $ 7,948,802 

Operating Expenses: 
Salaries, wages and benefits 2,426,371 
Chemicals, testing, and solids disposal 426,213 
Utilities 808,386 
Materials, supplies, and repairs 507,509 
Fleet expense 92,238 
Liability insurance 127,893 
Training, safety, and dues 32,842 
Professional fees 79,185 
Office expense 17,625 
Public education 750 
Billing and collections 133,579 
Bad debts 55,625 
Board of directors expense 16,600 
Miscellaneous 23,598 
Depreciation 2,829,697 

Total operating expenses 7,578,111 

Operating income 370,691 

Non-operating Revenues (Expenses): 
Investment revenue 65,629 
Interest expense (426,617) 
Amortization (6,029) 
Gain (loss) on sale of assets 42,915 
Tap-on and assessment fees 545,556 
Other,. net (49,528) 

Total non-operating revenues (expenses), net 171,926 

Change in net position before capital contributions 542,617 

Capital Contributions: 
Grant revenue 4,500 
Contributions from developers 59,240 

Total capital contributions 63,740 

Change in net position 606,357 

Net position, beginning 55,431,460 

NET POSITION, ENDING $56,037,817 

The notes·to financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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2016 
$ 7;407,866 

2,305,320 
353,945 
776,503 
474,784 

75,715 
127,671 
36,252 
66,762 
13,442 

750 
123,458 
54,705 
16,800 
20,763 

2,704,898 

7,151,768 

256,098 

33,760 
(439,887) 

(6,281) 
15,475 

327,125 
(18,700) 

(88,508) 

167,590 

4,500 
203,122 

207,622 

375,212 

55,056;248 

$ 55,431,460 



PADUCAH MCCRACKEN JOINT SEWER AGENCY 
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

YEARSENDEDJUNE30 

Cash Flows from Operating Adivities: 
Collections from customers 
Cash paid to suppliers 
Cash paid to employees 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

Cash Flows from Capital and Related 
Financing Activities: 

Grants and contributed capital 
Tap-on fees and assessments 
Acquisition of capital assets 
Proceeds from the sale of fixed assets 
Proceeds from debt issues 
Principal payments on long-term debt 
Interest payments on long-term debt 
(Increase )/Decrease in other noncurrent assets 
Other, net 

Net cash (used in) capital and related 
financing activities 

Casb Flows from Investing Activities: 
Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments 
Purchases of investments 
Investment earnings 

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR 

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash 
Provided by Operating Activities: 

Operating income 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash 

provided by operating activities: 
Depreciation 
Changes in operating assets and liabilities: 

Accounts receivable 
Accrued unbilled revenue 
Inventory and prepaid expenses 
Deferred outflows of resources 
Accounts payable 
Salaries and benefits payable 
Other current liabilities 
Net pension liability 
Deferred inflows of resources 

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

The notes to financial statements are an integral part ofthis statement. 
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2017 
$7,960,749 
(2,227,597) 
(2,239,248) 

3,493,904 

4,500 
545,556 

(3, 116,682) 
61,034 

510,096 
(1,084,898) 

(471,696) 
80 

(49,528) 

(3,60 1,538) 

7,505,226 
(6,583,551) 

16,470 

938,145 

830,511 

5,722,531 

$ 6,553,042 

$ 370,691 

2,829,697 

69,325 
{1,000) 
11,590 

(162,636) 
26,526 

7,376 
705 

310,190 
31,440 

$3,493,904 

2016 
- $ 7,273,065 . 

(2,0 16,531) 
(2,196,165) 

3,060,369 

19,530 
327,125 

(2,439,739) 
15,475 

1,104,899 
(905,898) 
(469,423) 
(194,900) 

(18,700) 

{2,561 ,631) 

2,831,299 
(3,694, 729) 

31,267 

(832,163~ 

(333,425) 

6,055,956 

$ 5,722,531 

$ 256,098 

2,704,898 

8,648 
(88,000) 
(27,488) 

(314,274) 
(117,778) 

(940) 
215,580 
621,361 

(197,736) 

$ 3,060,369 



PADUCAH MCCRACKEN JOINT SEWER AGENCY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30,2017 AND 2016 

Note A - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: 

Reporting Entity 

The Paducah McCracken Joint Sewer Agency, the "Agency'', was established pursuant to Chapter 76 of the Kentucky 
Revised Statutes. The Agency provides wastewater services to the residents of the City of Paducah and McCracken 
County, Kentucky. The Agency was established by merging the City of Paducah Wastewater Enterprise Fund with 
three sewer districts of McCracken County. Substantially all of the assets and liabilities of the separate component 
entities were contributed to create the Paducah McCracken Joint Sewer Agency effective July 1, 1999. 

Accounting Method 

The Agency maintains its books and these financial statements are presented using the "economic resources" 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, all assets and liabilities (whether current or 
noncurrent) are included on the Statement of Net Position. The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in 
Fund Net Position presents increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in total net position. Under the accrual 
basis of accounting, revenues are recognized in the period in which they are earned while expenses are recognized in 
the period incurred. 

The financial statements distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues 
and expenses generally result from providing services and delivering goods in connection with ongoing operations. 
The principal operating revenues of the Agency are charges for sewer service. Operating expenses include the cost of 
sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not 
meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. 

The significant accounting policies, as summarized below, are in conformity with generally accepted accounting 
principles as applicable to governmental units as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Siandards Board 
(GASB). The Agency applies Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification 
(Codification) issued on or before November 30, 1989, unless those pronouncements conflict with or contradict 
GASB pronouncements, in which case, GASB prevails. 

Cash and Investments 

For the purpose of the Statements of Cash Flows, "cash and cash equivalents" includes unrestricted demand and 
savings accounts of the Agency. 

Accounts Receivable and Bad Debts 

Accounts receivable are uncollateralized customer obligations due under normal trade terms requiring payment within 
30 days from the invoice mailing date. Customer account balances with invoices dated over 30 days old are 
considered delinquent. Payments of accounts receivable are allocated to the specific invoices identified on the 
customer's remittance advice or, if unspecified, are applied to the earliest unpaid invoices. 

No allowance for doubtful accounts has been provided since it is believed the balance in accounts receivable is fully 
collectible. Overdue accounts are monitored and written off as necessary. The effect of using this method is not 
significantly different from results which would be obtained by using the allowance method. 

(Continued) 
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PADUCAH MCCRACKEN JOINT SEWER AGENCY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30,2017 AND2016 

Note A- Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued): 

Accrued Unbilled Revenue 

Accrued unbilled revenue represents the portion of sewer service provided that was unbilled as of the end of the year. 

Inventories 

Materials and supplies are carried in an inventory account at cost and are subsequently capitalized or charged to 
expense when consumed utilizing the first -in, first-out (FIFO) method. 

Capital Assets 

Capital assets are recorded at cost. Donated assets are stated at fair value on the date donated. The Agency generally 
does not capitalize assets with costs less than $1 ,000. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to 
the asset value or materially extend useful lives are not capitalized. 

When capital assets are disposed, the cost and applicable accumulated depreciation are removed from the respective 
accounts, and the resulting gain or loss is recorded. Depreciation is provided by the straight-line method over the 
estimated useful lives of the various classes of assets as follows: 

Utility plant 
Vehicles 
General plant and office equipment 

Capital Contributions 

Years 
20-60 

5- 7 
3-10 

Capital contributions are derived from two main sources: I) developers, when they construct and pay for sewer lines 
and then donate these additions to the Agency; and 2) other governments, in the form of grants or contributions of 
capital assets. Developer contributions are recorded at fair value when the property is transferred to the Agency and 
are depreciated over their estimated useful lives using the straight-line method. 

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, 
actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Note B- Restricted Assets and Investments: 

Restricted assets and investments consist of certificates of deposit and other securities, which have been set aside for 
the repayment of bonds and notes, for maintenance reserves as required, and for ongoing capital projects. These 
balances are classified as restricted assets on the statement of net assets because their use is limited by applicable 
bond ordinances and loan agreements. 

(Continued) 
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PADUCAH MCCRACKEN JOINT SEWER AGENCY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30,2017 AND 2016 

Note B- Restricted Assets and Investments (Continued): 

At June 30, these restricted funds were comprised of the following investments: 

Certificates of deposit - various fmanc:ial institutions 
U.S. Government money market funds 

TOTALS 

2017 
$ 642,413 

527,510 

$1 169,923 

2016 
$ 639,000 

510,796 

$].]49.796 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Agency's policy to use restricted 
resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed, 

Note C- Deposits and Investments With Financial Institutions: 

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the Agency's deposits may not be 
returned or the Agency will not be able to recover collateral securities in the possession of an outside party, The 
Agency's investment policy requires all investments be made in accordance with applicable legal requirements with 
consideration of investment safety, Accordingly, the Agency maintains collateral agreements with its financial 
institutions, whereby deposits are secured with collateral valued at market value, The Board of Directors has 
authorized the Executive Director to utilize depository institutions located within McCracken County, which have 
been evaluated by the Board and/or Executive Director and Finance Director, 

During the years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016, the Agency's investments include U.S. government money market 
funds, short term treasury obligations, demand deposits, and certificates of deposit The bank balance of cash and 
investments totaled $12,355,526 and $12,839,239, respectively, at June 30, 2017 and 2016, with $0 and $0, 
respectively, uninsured and uncollateralized, 

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligations, Generally, 
the Agency's investing activities are managed under the direction of the Executive Director and Finance Director, 
Investing is performed in accordance with investment policies adopted by the Board of Directors complying with state 
statutes. The state statutes authorize the Agency to invest in direct obligations of the United States government, 
obligations backed by the full faith and credit of the United States government, certificates of deposit or other interest 
bearing accounts issued by any bank or savings and loan institution provided that such investments are insured by the 
FDIC or guaranteed by the pledge of direct United States government obligations, bonds issued by the 
Commonwealth of Kentucky or one of its agencies and instrumentalities, securities issued by any state or local 
government of the United States rated in one of the three highest categories by a nationally recognized rating agency, 
certain mutual funds, commercial paper rated in the highest category by a nationally recognized rating agency, or 
bankers' acceptances for banks rated in one of the three highest categories by a nationally recognized rating agency, 

(Continued) 
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PADUCAH MCCRACKEN JOINT SEWER AGENCY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30,2017 AND 2016 

Note D- Construction in Progress: 

The Agency had the following projects in process at June 30: 

Anita Drive Pump Station Capacity Evaluation 
Brentwood PS Pumps & Control Panel Upgrade 
Chickadee Lift Station Elimination Project 
Dewatering Building Roof Replacement 
Harrison Street Storage Tank 
Homewood Overflow Tank 
Long Tenn Control Plan 
Manhole Rehabilitation Contract 
Massac Creek Phase III Study 
Metal Building 
Old Highway 60 Extension 
Olivet Church Road/Rebecca Lane Extension 
Perkins Creek Tank Preliminary Engineering 
PWWTP Electrical Upgrade 
Rehab Contract CY '1 5 
Rehab Contract CY ' 16 
Rehab Contract CY '17 
Reidland Above Ground Storage Tank 
Reidland!Epperson Rds Force Main Replacement Projects 
Roofs at RWWTP & JSA Admin Building 
SCADA Server Upgrade 
Video and Cleaning Contract 201 6 
Video and Cleaning Contract 2017 
Wexford Pump Station Valve Vault Replacement 
Capitalized Interest 

TOTALS 

2017 
$ 14,061 

15,594 
11,369 

344,486 

11,485 
19,500 
23,341 

4,250 
52,696 
30,810 

4,?48 

18,863 
295,948 

14,426 
258 

53,688 

16,954 

I 1,973 

$.___2M !!50 

$ 
2016 

12,085 

11,368 
69 

36,421 
180,870 

1,023,798 

19,500 

4,250 
52,696 

315,341 
19,189 

23,024 

16,993 

4,130 
3,413 

$1.721147 

Construction in progress related invoices of $178,629 and $279,121 were included in accounts payable at June 30, 
201 7 and 20 I 6, respectively. 

Note E - Capital Assets: 

Capital assets consists of the following at June 30: 

2017 
Balance as of Balance as of 
June 30~ 2016 Increases Decreases June 30, 2017 

Capital assets, not being depreciated: 
Land $ 931,096 $ 48,540 $ $ 979,636 
Construction in progress 1.723,148 2.778,164 3,660.027 841.285 

Total capital assets not being 
depreciated 2,654,244 2,826,704 3,660,021 1,820,921 

(Continued) 
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PADUCAH MCCRACKEN JOINT SEWER AGENCY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 AND 2016 

Note E- Capital Assets {Continued): 

2017 
Balance -as of Balance as of 
June 30, 2016 Increases Decreases June 30, 2017 

Capital assets, being depreciated: 
Utility assets (pipes, pumps, plants, 

structures) $ 93,690,937 $ 2,699,842 $ 4,000 $ 96,386,779 
Vehicles 1,577-,759 188,376 317,358 1,448,777 
General plant and office furniture 2,639,8!6 1,142,565 15 237 3,767.144 

Totals at historical cost 97.908,512 4,030.783 336,595 101,602.700 

Less accumulated depreciation: 
Utility assets 32,102,162 2,458,196 3,067 34,557,291 
General plant and office furniture 2,023,095 202,228 15,141 2,210,182 
Vehicles 994,390 169,273 300,268 1.463.931 

Total accumulated depreciation 35,119,647 2,829,697 318,~76 37,630,868 

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 62.788.865 1.201,086 18.119 63,971,832 

TOTAL SYSTEM CAPITAL 
ASSETS- NET $__ 65 443 109 $ 4.027.790 L3 678 146 L65 722 753 

2016 
Balance as of Balance as of 
June 30,2015 Increases Decreases June 30, 2016 

Capital assets, not being depreciated: 
Land $ 886,057 $ 45,039 $ $ 931,096 
Construction in progress 4,898.198 1,681.583 4,856,633 1.723.148 

Total capital assets not being 
depreciated 5,784,255 1.726,622 4.856.633 2.654.244 

Capital assets, being depreciated: 
Utility assets (pipes, pumps, plants, 

structures) 88,675,175 5,015,762 93,690,937 
Vehicles 1,361,384 253,209 36,834 1,577,759 
General plant and office furniture 2.510,965 128.851 2,639,816 

Totals at historical cost 22,541,524 5,397.822 36,834 97,908,512 

Less accumulated depreciation: 
Utility assets 29,680,759 2,421,403 32,102,162 
General plant and office furniture 1,860,392 162,703 2,023,095 
Vehicles 9to 432 120.792 36,834 994,390 

Total accumulated depreciation 32,451,583 2.704,898 36,834 35,119,647 

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 60,095,941 2.692,924 62,788,865 

TOTAL SYSTEM CAPITAL 
ASSETS- NET $ 65 880,126. $ 4 419,5.4.6. $_4.85.§,633 $ 65.443 109 

(Continued) 
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PADUCAH MCCRACKEN JOINT SEWER AGENCY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30,2017 AND 2016 

Note F- Notes and Bonds Payable: 

Notes and bonds payable consists of the following: 

Notes Payable: 
Kentucky Infrastructure Authority 

Bonds Payable: 
Sewer Revenue Bonds, Series 2012 
Sewer Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2014 

Less current maturities 

l017 

$13;789,605 

4,075,500 
3,770,000 

21,635,105 
1,121.899 

~20 s 13,206. 

Debt service requirements on notes and bonds payable at June 30, 2017, are as follows: 

Years Ending Service 
June30 Principal Interest Fee 

2018 $ 1,121,899 $ 458,991 $ 27,174 
2019 1,137,656 438,578 25,538 
2020 1,154,164 417,858 22,875 
2021 1,175,426 396,716 22,183 
2022 1,197,449 375,359 20,463 

2023-2027 5,913,106 1,523,781 76,470 
2028-2032 5,400,848 890,771 37,479 
2033-2037 2,317,057 414,674 6,083 
2038-2042 681,000 268,648 
2043-2047 800,500 168,644 
Thereafter 736,000 51.301 

TOTALS $21,635,105 :&5,405,321 ~238,26~ 

2016 

$14,069,406 

4,140,500 
4,000,000 

22,209,906 
1.073.797 

:&21,13fi 102 

Total 
$ 1,608,064 

1,601,772 
1,595,897 
1,594,325 
1,593,271 
7,513,357 
6,329,098 
2,737,814 

949,648 
969,144 
787,301 

:&21212 621 

Notes payable are secured by capital assets and restricted funds. At June 30, 2017, the above notes are payable to 
Kentucky Infrastructure Authority and are payable in semi-annual installments, including interest ranging from 1.0% 
to 2.0%. These agreements provide capital project funding utilizing a combination of both long-tenn borrowing and 
federal stimulus grant funds from the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act. 

During the year ended JWie 30, 2013, the Agency formally issued Sewer Revenue Bonds, Series 2012, in the amount 
of$4,324,000 with the first principal payment due January 1, 2014. The interest rate on the bond is 2.75%, and the 
bonds require annual principal payments and semi-annual interest payments through 2051. Proceeds from the bonds, 
which mature January 1, 2051, were used to repay the Rural Water note. 

During the year ended June 30,2015, the Agency formally issued Sewer Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2014, in 
the amount of $4,220,000 with the first principal payment due January 1, 2016. The interest rate on the bond is 
variable between 1.75% and 3.00%, and the bonds require annual principal payments and semi-annual interest 
payments through 2031. Proceeds from the bonds, which mature January 1, 2031, were used to repay the Series 20 I 0 
(Build America Bonds) Taxable Sewer Revenue Bonds. 

(Continued) 
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PADUCAH MCCRACKEN JOINT SEWER AGENCY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 AND 2016 

Note F- Notes and Bonds Payable (Continued): 

Notes and bonds payable activity for the year ended June 30, 2017, was as follows: 

Beginning 
Balance Additions Reductions 

Long-tenn liabilities: 
Bonds payable $ 8,140,500 $ $ 295,000 $ 
Notes payable 14,069.406 510.096 789,897 

TOTAL LONG-TERM 

Ending 
Balance 

7,845,500 
13.789.605 

LIABILITIES $__22 209 906 $510 096 $1.084 897 $ 21.635 105 

Note G- Contributed Cauital: 

Due Within 
One Year 

$ 307,500 
814.399 

$ 1.121.899 

For the years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016, the Agency accepted $59,240 and $144,045, respectively, of sewer line 
extensions and a new lift station that were placed into service during the respective years by developers in McCracken 
County, Kentucky. 

Note H- Disclosures Regarding Statements of Cash Flows: 

Non-Cash Investing and Financing 

Non-<:ash investing and financing transactions received 
during the years ended June 30 as follows: 

Developer contributions 
Undepreciated costs of assets disposed 

Note I- Risk Management: 

$59,240 
$18,119 

2016 

$203,122 

The Agency is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets, errors 
and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. To handle the risk of loss, the Agency participates in a 
public entity risk pool offered to the members of the Kentucky Municipal Risk Management Association. 
Participating members pool their funds in order to provide self-insurance, and, when necessary, third-party insurance, 
against various public liability exposure. 

The Agency is responsible for paying annual and supplementary contributions which are determined by the Board that 
governs the operation of the pool. The contributions are calculated based on actuarial evaluations, ratings plans, and 
other analyses ofthe amounts necessary for the payment of claims and losses. 

In exchange, the Agency is provided with payment of all claims and losses incurred, subject to certain tenns and 
conditions such as deductibles and coverage limits. Due to the nature of the public entity risk pool established within 
this policy, the Agency can receive a distribution of surplus funds in the event of excess pool assets or be assessed in 
the event of pool shortfalls. 

(Continued) 
-18-



PADUCAH MCCRACKEN JOINT SEWER AGENCY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30,2017 AND 2016 

Note J- Employee Retirement System: 

Plan description. Employees of Paducah McCracken Joint Sewer Agency participate in the County Employees' 
Retirement System (CERS), a cost-sharing, multiple-employer, defined benefit pension plan, which is administered by 
the Kentucky Retirement Systems. The plan covers all eligible full-time employees and provides for retirement and 
death benefits to plan members as well as disability to members other than those in the third tier. Retirement benefits 
may be extended to beneficiaries of plan members under certain circumstances. Cost of living adjustments (COLA) 
are provided at the discretion of the State legislature. Under the provisions of Kentucky Revised Section 61.645, the 
Board of Trustees of Kentucky Retirement Systems provides for the establishment of the system and benefit 
amendments are authorized by the State legislature. The Kentucky Retirement Systems issues a publicly available 
financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information for the plan. The report 
may be obtained by writing or calling the plan: 

Kentucky Retirement Systems 
Perimeter Park West 
1260 Louisville Road 
Frankfort, KY 40601-6124 
(502) 564-4646 

The CERS also provides other post-employment benefits through the Kentucky Retirement Systems Insurance Fund 
(Insurance Fund), which was established to provide hospital and medical insurance for members receiving benefits 
from CERS. The Insurance Fund is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit postemployment healthcare plan 
administered by the Kentucky Retirement Systems. The Insurance Fund pays a prescribed contribution for whole or 
partial payment of required premiums to purchase hospital and medical insurance. All participants enrolled in CERS 
are automatically enrolled in both the Insurance Fund and the pension plan. Information regarding the Insurance Fund 
is contained in the financial statements ofthe Kentucky Retirement Systems. 

Funding policy. Contribution rates are established by the Kentucky Revised Statutes. Non-hazardous plan members 
ofCERS are required to contribute 5.00% oftheir annual covered salary, and Paducah McCracken Joint Sewer Agency 
provides a contribution of 18.68% of that salary during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017. The required contribution 
rate for fiscal year ending June 30, 2016 was 17.06%. The contribution rate is a combined rate for both the pension 
plan and the Insurance Fund. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, the pension plan portion was 13.95% and the 
Insurance Fund portion was 4.73%. These percentages were 12.42% and 4.64% for the fiscal year ended June 30, 
2016. For employees hired on September I, 2008, or thereafter, an additional 1% must be contributed by employees to 
a health insurance account. The employer pension contributions for fiscal years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016 were 
$207,334 and $181,983, respectively. The employer insurance contributions for fiscal years ended June 30,2017 and 
2016 were $70,300 and $67,987, respectively. The actuarially determined contribution requirements of plan members 
and the Agency are established and may be amended by the KRS Board of Trustees. 

Pension liabilities, pension expense, and deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
pensions. The Agency reported a liability of $3,028,183 and $2,717,993 at June 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively, for 
its proportionate share of the net pension liability. The net pension liability at June 30, 2017 and 2016 was measured 
as of June 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was 
determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The Agency's proportion of the net pension liability was based on 
a projection of the Agency's share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the total contributions of all 
participating employers, actuarially determined. At June 30,2017, the Agency's proportion was 0.06150%. 

(Continued) 
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PADUCAH MCCRACKEN JOINT SEWER AGENCY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 AND 2016 

Note J- Employee Retirement System (Continued): 

As a result of its requirement to contribute to CERS, the Agency recognized pension expense of $379,567 for the year 
ended June 30, 2017. At June 30,2017, the Agency reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources from the following sources as a result of its requirements to contribute to CERS: 

Net difference between projected and actual earnings 
on plan investments 

Difference between expected and actual experience 
Change in assumptions 
Change in proportion and differences between employer 
contributions and proportionate share of contributions 

Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 

TOTALS 

Deferred 
OuUlows of 
Resources 

$284,680 
13,220 

160,417 

207,334 

$665.651 

Deferred 
Inflows of 
Resources 

$ 

67,739 

Deferred outflows of resources in the amount of $207,334 related to pension contributions made subsequent to the 
measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2018. 
Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will 
be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

Year Ended 
June30 
2018 
2019 
2020 
2021 

$155,771 
106,515 
110,928 
63,242 

The net pension liability as of June 30, 2017, is based on the June 30, 2016, actuarial valuation. Deferred outflows 
and inflows related to the net difference between projected and actual earnings on plan investments are netted and 
amortized over a closed five year period. Deferred outflows and inflows related to differences between expected and 
actual experience and change in assumptions are amortized over a period of3.51 years. 

Actuarial assumptions. The total pension liability in the June 30, 2016 actuarial valuation was determined using the 
following actuarial assumptions, applied to all prior periods included in the measurement; 

Inflation- 3.25% 
Salary increases - 4.0%, average including inflation 
Investment rate of return - 7 .5%, net of pension plan investment expense including inflation 

The mortality table used for active members is RP-2000 Combined Mortality Table projected with Scale BB to 2013 
(multiplied by 50% for males and 30% for females). For healthy retired members and beneficiaries, the mortality 
table used is the RP-2000 Combined Mortality Table projected with Scale BB to 2013 (set back for one year for 
females). For disabled members, the RP-2000 Combined Disabled Mortality Table projected with Scale BB to 2013 
(set back four years for males) is used for the period after disability retirement. There is some margin in the current 
mortality tables for possible future improvement in mortality rates and that margin will be reviewed again when the 
next experience investigation is conducted. 

(Continued) 
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PADUCAH MCCRACKEN JOINT SEWER AGENCY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30,2017 AND 2016 

Note J- Employee Retirement System (Continued): 

The long-term expected return on plan assets is reviewed as part of the regular experience studies prepared every five 
years for KRS. The most recent analysis, performed for the period covering fiscal years 2008 through 2013, is 
outlined in a report dated December 3, 2015. Several factors are considered in evaluating the long-term rate of return 
assumption including long-term historical data, estimates inherent in current market data, and a log normal 
distribution analysis in which best estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected return, net of 
investment expense, and inflation) were developed by the investment consultant for each major asset class. These 
ranges were combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of 
return by the target asset allocation percentage and then adding expected inflation. The assumption is intended to be 
a long-tenn assumption and is not expected to change absent a significant change in the asset allocation, a change in 
the inflation assumption, or a fundamental change in the market that alters expected returns in future years. 

Discount rate. The discount rate detennination does not use a municipal bond rate. Projected future benefit 
payments for all current plan members were projected through 2117. The target allocation and best estimates of 
arithmetic nominal rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the following table: 

Asset Class 
Combined Equity 
Combined Fixed Income 
Real Return (Diversified Inflation Strategies) 
Real Estate 
Absolute Return (Diversified Hedge Funds) 
Private Equity 
Cash 

Total 

Target 
Allocation 

44% 
19% 
10% 
5% 

10% 
10% 

_2% 

Long-Term Expected 
Real Rate of Return 

5.40% 
1.50% 
3.50% 
4.50% 
4.25% 
8.50% 

(.25)% 

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2016 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience 
study for the period July I, 2008 to June 30, 2013. The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 
7 .5%. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan 
members and employers will be made at the actuarially detennined contribution rate of projected compensation over 
the remaining 28 year amortization period of the unfunded actuarial accrued liability. 

Sensitivity of the Agency's proportionate share of the net pension liabWty to changes in the discount rate. The 
following presents the Agency's proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the discount rate of 
7 .5%, as well as what the Agency's proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated 
using a discount rate that is )-percentage-point lower (6.5%) or !-percentage-point higher (8.5%) than the current 
rate: 

1% Current 1% 
Decrease Discount Rate Increase 

6.5% 7.5% 8.5% 
The Agency's proportionate share 

of the net pension liability $3,773,410 $3,028,183 $2,389,082 

(Continued) 
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PADUCAH MCCRACKEN JOINT SEWER AGENCY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30,2017 AND 2016 

Note K- Deferred Compensation: 

The Agency participates in the Kentucky Public Employees' Deferred Compensation Plan, a self-directed multi­
employer 40 I (k) and 457(b) plan. Under the plan, employees may defer up to 25% of eligible compensation, not to 
exceed the statutory limits, currently $18,000. 

The Agency made discretionary contributions to the 40l(k) plan on behalf of the employees in an amount equal to 
5.36% of eligible compensation through December 31, 2014. Beginning January l, 2015, the Kentucky Public 
Employees Deferred Comp Plan stopped accepting employer contribution. At that time, the Agency elected to 
continue to make the 5.36% discretionary contribution to a new plan with Nationwide Financial Services. 
Participants are immediately vested in the employer contribution. Employer contributions for the years ended June 
30,2017 and 2016, were $80,228 and $78,918, respectively. 

Note L- Commitments and Contingencies: 

The Agency has entered into a Consent Decree with the Kentucky Environmental and Public Protection Cabinet. The 
Agency is required to bring combined and sanitary sewer overflows into compliance with Federal and State 
guidelines. The Agency is bound by the Decree for many years to come and will incur significant costs to bring the 
system into compliance. The total cost of complying with this Consent Decree is estimated at $102 million and is 
expected to be completed over the next 22 years. 

The following amounts represent either balances remaining on contracts or contracts signed in which no work had 
been performed at June 30,2017. 

Contract Contract Future 
Vendor Project Total Cost-to-Date Commitment 
JR Wali.ford & Co., Consulting Engineers Harrison Street 

Storage Tank (PHI) $ 300,000 $ $ 300,000 
Bacon, Farmer Workman Engineering Harrison Street 

Storage Tank (PHI) 9,489 8,590 899 
Spectra tech Manhole Contract 

CY'17 108,525 108,525 
Bacon, Farmer Workman Engineering Metal Building 5,032 4,048 985 
MP Lawson Construction, LLC Metal Building 198,000 3,800 194,200 
HDR Engineering, Inc. PWWTP Sand Beds 

Reconstruction 5,890 5,890 
Layne Inliner, LLC Rehab Contract 

CY'17 830,314 830,314 
Bacon, Farmer Workman Engineering Reidland/Epperson 

Rds Force Main 
Replacement Projects 16,576 14,318 2,259 

HDR Engineering, Inc. Reidland Above 
Ground Storage Tank 262,930 94,050 168,880 

RKA Construction, LLC Reidland Above 
Ground Storage Tank 1,888,558 114,075 1,774,483 

Rick's Electric, Inc. SCADA Server 
Upgrade 53,688 40,266 13,422 

Pipe Eyes, LLC Video & Cleaning 
Contract 20 17 147,544 147,544 

$3 826 546 $212,146 $3_,541402 

(Continued) 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30,2017 AND 2016 

Note L- Commitments and Contingencies (Continued): 

The Agency has entered into an agreement with the City of Paducah to donate a portion of the Wallace Park Sewer 
Separation project to the City upon completion of the project. This portion of the project was $759,545 at June 30, 
2017 and 2016 and is recorded in other current assets. Due to the fact that this will be donated upon completion, a 
liability is recorded in other current liabilities for the same amount. The project was completed during the year ended 
June 30, 2016 and is expected to be transferred to the City of Paducah in the first part of fiscal year 2018. 

Note M- Board Designated Funds: 

It is the policy of the current Board of Directors to designate up to $135,000 annually for high dollar capital 
equipment purchases, for emergencies, or for rate stabilization in the event of a loss of a substantial revenue stream. 
The Board's intent is to establish a maximum funding level of $3 million and a minimum level of $750 thousand in 
this fund. Designations of amounts represent tentative management plans, but are subject to change. Board 
designated funds amounted to $3 million as of June 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively, and are included as part of the 
unrestricted net assets on the statements of net position. 

Note N - Interest Expense: 

For the years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016, interest expense before adjustment for capitalized construction period 
interest was $467,725 and $461,810, respectively. For the years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016, interest expense of 
$43,108 and $21,923, respectively, was capitalized to the Agency's capital assets accounts. 

Note 0- Subsequent Events: 

Management has evaluated subsequent events through October 26, 2017, the date which the fmancial statements 
were available to be issued. On October 10, 2016, the Agency received approval of the Long Term Control Plan, 
discussed in Note Labove, from the Kentucky Department of Environmental Protection. 
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PADUCAH MCCRACKEN ~OINT SEWER AGENCY 
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE 

NET PENSION LIABLITY 
COUNTY EMPLOYEE'S RETIREMENT SYSTEM (CERS) 

LAST THREE FISCAL YEARS• 

Employer's proportion ofthe 
net pension liability (asset) 

Employer's proportionate share 
of the net pension liability (asset) 

Employer's covered payroll 

Employer's proportionate share of the net 
pension liability (asset) as a percentage 
of its covered payroll 

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage 
of the total pension liability 

2017 

0.06150% 

$3,028,183 

$ 1,486,264 

203.74% 

55.50% 

2016 

0.06322% 

$2,717,993 

$ 1,473,428 

184.47% 

59.97% 

" The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of June 30. Until a full I 0-year trend is compiled, 
governments will present information only for those years for which information is available. 

Notes to Schedule 

The total pension liability was determined by applying procedures to the actuarial valuation as of June 30,2016. The 
financial reporting actuarial valuation used the following actuarial methods and assumptions, applied to all prior periods 
included in the measurement. 

Valuation date 
Experience study 
Actuarial cost method 
Amortization method 
Remaining amortization period 
Asset valuation method 
Inflation 
Salary increase 
Investment rate of return 

June 30, 2016 
July I, 2008- June 30,2013 
Entry age normal 
Level percentage of payroll, closed 
27 years 
5-year smoothed market 
3.25% 
4.0%, average, including inflation 
7.5%, net of pension plan investment expense, including inflation 

NOTE: This schedule is based on the last measurement date of the net pension liability. 
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2015 

0.06460% 

$2,096,632 

$ 1,482,568 

141.42% 

66.80% 



PADUCAH MCCRACKEN JOINT SEWER AGENCY 
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 

COUNTY EMPLOYEE'S RETIREMENT SYSTEM (CERS) 
LAST FOUR FISCAL YEARS* 

2017 2016 
Contractually required contribution $ 207,334 $ 181,983 

Contributions in relation to the 
contractually required contribution 207,334 181,983 

Contribution deficiency (excess) $ $ 

Employer's covered payroll $1,486,264 $ 1,465,240 

Contributions as a percentage of 
covered payroll 13.95% 12.42% 

2015 
$ 188,741 

188,741 

$ 

$ 1,473,428 

12.75% 

*The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of June 30. Until a full 10-year trend is 
compiled, governments will present information only for those years for which information is available. 

NOTE: This schedule is determined as of the employer's most recent fiscal year-end. 
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2014 
$ 203,705 

203,705 

$ 

$1,482,568 

13.74% 
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PADUCAH MCCRACKEN JOINT SEWER AGENCY 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS­

BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

Original and 
Final Budget Actual 

Operating Revenues: Amounts Amounts 
Charges for services $7,768,900 $7,948,802 

Operating Expenses: 
Salaries, wages and benefits 2,346,395 2,426,371 
Chemicals, testing, and solids disposal 368,000 426,213 
Utilities 774,800 808,386 
Materials, supplies, and repairs 468,200 507,509 
Fleet expense 83,900 92,238 
Liability insurance 130,000 127,893 
Training, safety, and dues 34,800 32,842 
Professional fees 93,000 79,185 
Office expense 15,700 17,625 
Public education 1,000 750 
Billing and collections 135,500 133,579 
Bad debts 56,300 55,625 
Board of Directors expense 16,800 16,600 
Miscellaneous 17,700 23,598 
Depreciation 2,904,500 2,829,697 

Total operating expenses 7,446,595 7,578,111 

Operating income 322,305 370,691 

Non-operating Revenues (Expenses): 
Investment revenue 33,000 65,629 
Interest expense (478,500) (426,617) 
Amortization (6,100) (6,029) 
Gain (loss) on sale of assets (20,000) 42,915 
Tap-on and !ISSessment fees 206,500 545,556 
Other, net (66,600) (49,528) 

Total non-operating revenues (expenses), net (331,700) 171,926 

Change in net position before capital contributions (9,395) 542,617 

Capital Contributions: 
Grant revenue 4,500 
Contributed capital 59,240 

Total capital contributions (9,395) 63,740 

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET ASSETS $ (9,395) $ 606,357 

See independent auditor's report. 
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Variance 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 
$ 179,902 

(79,976) 
(58,213) 
(33,586) 
(39,309) 

(8,338) 
2,107 
1,958 

13,815 
(1,925) 

250 
1,921 

675 
200 

(5,898) 
74,803 

(131 ,516) 

48,386 

32,629 
51,883 

71 
62,915 

339,056 
17,072 

503,626 

552,012 

4,500 
59,240 

63,740 

$ 615,752 



WILLIAMS WILLIAMS LEf\ITZ 
CERTIFIED l'LJHI.Il' ACCOUNTANTS 

Independent Auditor's Report On Internal Control 

J. David Bailey, III 
Sue Cronch-Gwcnwcll 

Hoger G.llarris 
M iclmcl f. K arne~ 

Over Financial Reporting And On Complinnce And Other Matters 
l.lnscd On An Audit Of Financinl Statements Performed In 

Accordance \Vith Go11ermnent A11diting Standards 

Board of Directors 
Paducah McCracken Joint Sewer Agency 
Paducah, Kentucky 

Mark A. Thorms 
Ashley C. Grooms 
Kelly D. Scmggs 
Benjamin D. Tccr 

We have audited in nccordancc with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govemme/11 Allditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General 
of the United States, tin: financial stal~rncnts ul' the business-type activities of Paducah McCracken Joint Sewer Agency 
as ofmld for the year ended June 30, 2017, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise 
Paducah McCracken County Joint Sewer Agency's basic linancial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated 
October 26, 2017. 

Internal Control Over Fin:mcinl Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial >tatements, we considered Paducah McCracken Joint Sewer 
Agency's internal control over financial reporting (intemal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate 
iu the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Paducah McCracken Joint Sewer Agency's internal control. Accordingly, 
we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Paducah McCracken Joint Sewer Agency's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the notmal course of pcrfonning their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on 
a timely basis. A material weakness is a cld!cicncy, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is 
a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of Paducah McCracken Joint Sewer Agency's financial statements 
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination uf deficiencies, in intem<tl control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit 
attention by those charged with govemnncc. 

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the ftrst paragraph 
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies il1 internal control that might be material weaknesses or 
significant deficiencies. Given these limitatio11s, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in intemal cmJtrol 
that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

Compliance anrl Other Matters 

As pm1 of obtalning reasonable assurance obout whether Paducah McCracl<cn Joint Sewer Agency's financial statements 
are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its complirmcc with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the detennination of 
f1nancial statement amounts. However, providing an opi~ion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective 
of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of 
noncompliance or other matters that are n:quired to be reported under Government A11diling Standards. 
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Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results 
ofthat testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control or on compliance. This 
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the 
entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

j)~~/Jb,J~ a/ 
Paducah, Kentucky . # , 
October26, 2017 
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